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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

SACRAMENTO DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ex rel. 
DENIKA TERRY, ROY HUSKEY III, and
TAMERA LIVINGSTON, and each of them for
themselves individually, and for all other persons
similarly situated and on behalf of the UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA 

Plaintiffs/Relators, 

vs. 

WASATCH ADVANTAGE GROUP, LLC,
WASATCH PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Case No.: 2:15-CV-00799-KJM-DB 

CLASS ACTION 

SIXTH AMENDED CLASS ACTION 
COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND 
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, AND FOR RELIEF
PURSUANT TO FALSE CLAIMS ACT 
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WASATCH POOL HOLDINGS, LLC,
CHESAPEAKE APARTMENT HOLDINGS, LLC,
LOGAN PARK APARTMENTS, LLC, LOGAN 
PARK APARTMENTS, LP, ASPEN PARK 
HOLDINGS, LLC, BELLWOOD JERRON 
HOLDINGS, LLC, BELLWOOD JERRON 
APARTMENTS, LP, BENT TREE 
APARTMENTS, LLC, CALIFORNIA PLACE
APARTMENTS, LLC, CAMELOT LAKES
HOLDINGS, LLC, CANYON CLUB HOLDINGS,
LLC, COURTYARD AT CENTRAL PARK 
APARTMENTS, LLC, CREEKSIDE HOLDINGS,
LTD, HAYWARD SENIOR APARTMENTS, LP, 
HERITAGE PARK APARTMENTS, LP, OAK 
VALLEY APARTMENTS, LLC, OAK VALLEY 
HOLDINGS, LP, PEPPERTREE APARTMENT 
HOLDINGS, LP, PIEDMONT APARTMENTS,
LP, POINT NATOMAS APARTMENTS, LLC,
POINT NATOMAS APARTMENTS, LP, RIVER
OAKS HOLDINGS, LLC, SHADOW WAY 
APARTMENTS, LP, SPRING VILLA 
APARTMENTS, LP, SUN VALLEY HOLDINGS,
LTD, VILLAGE GROVE APARTMENTS, LP,
WASATCH QUAIL RUN GP, LLC, WASATCH 
PREMIER PROPERTIES, LLC, WASATCH 
POOL HOLDINGS III, LLC, 
and DOES 1-4, 

Defendants. 
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

Qui tam plaintiffs and proposed class representatives DENIKA TERRY, ROY HUSKEY III, 

and TAMERA LIVINGSTON (“Plaintiffs”) demand a trial by jury. Plaintiffs DENIKA TERRY, ROY 

HUSKEY III, and TAMERA LIVINGSTON on behalf of themselves and those similarly situated, 

allege as follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. Plaintiffs seek to represent a class of past, present, and prospective tenants of 

Defendants Wasatch Advantage Group, LLC, Wasatch Property Management, Inc., Wasatch Pool 

Holdings, LLC, Chesapeake Apartment Holdings, LLC, Logan Park Apartments, LLC, Logan Park 

Apartments, LP, Aspen Park Holdings, LLC, Bellwood Jerron Apartments, LLC, Bellwood Jerron 

Apartments, LP, Bent Tree Apartments, LLC, California Place Apartments, LLC, Camelot Lakes 

Holdings, LLC, Canyon Club Holdings, LLC, Courtyard at Central Park Apartments, LLC, Creekside 

Holdings, LTD, Hayward Senior Apartments, LP, Heritage Park Apartments, LP, Logan Park 

Apartments, LP, Oak Valley Apartments, LLC, Oak Valley Holdings, LP, Peppertree Apartment 

Holdings, LP, Piedmont Apartments, LP, Point Natomas Apartments, LLC, Point Natomas 

Apartments, LP, River Oaks Holdings, LLC, Shadow Way Apartments, LP, Spring Villa Apartments, 

LP, Sun Valley Holdings, LTD, Village Grove Apartments, LP, Wasatch Quail Run GP, LLC, 

Wasatch Premier Properties, LLC, and Wasatch Pool Holdings III, LLC and Does 1-4 (“Defendants”). 

2. Defendants own, rent, and/or manage residential apartment units throughout the western 

United States, including properties in California, Utah, Arizona and Washington. 

3. Defendants’ properties include the Logan Park and Chesapeake Commons apartment 

communities located at 4141 Palm Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95842 (“Palm Avenue Property”) and 

3600 Data Drive, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 (“Data Drive Property”). 

4. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Denika Terry was Defendants’ tenant at 

Apartment No. 391 of the Data Drive Property. 

5. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Roy Huskey III was Defendants’ tenant at 

Apartment No. 191 of the Palm Avenue Property. 
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6. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Tamera Livingston was Defendants’ tenant at 

Apartment No. 491 of the Data Drive Property. 

7. Defendants rent hundreds of apartments at their properties to tenants who receive rental 

assistance through the federally subsidized Housing Choice Voucher Program, commonly known as 

“Section 8.” The Section 8 program provides that a participating tenant, renting privately owned 

housing, pays generally between 30 and 40 percent of their adjusted monthly income toward the rent 

and utility costs, while the federal government and local housing agencies pay the balance of the rent 

directly to the property owner. 

8. At the Data Drive and Palm Avenue Properties alone, there are more than one hundred 

Section 8 tenants. 

9. The certified Class includes over 2,000 class members. All are Section 8 tenants who 

have lived at one or more of Defendants’ properties in California, at relevant times. There are likely 

hundreds more Section 8 tenants across Defendants’ properties outside of California. 

10. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants and local public housing agencies, 

such as the Sacramento County Housing and Redevelopment Agency, were parties to standard form 

Housing Assistance Payments Contracts (“HAP Contracts”) mandated by the U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) pursuant to the Section 8 program. These HAP Contracts 

include a standard form Tenancy Addendum. Defendants and Plaintiffs were parties to rental contracts 

incorporating the Tenancy Addendum. 

11. As part of their usual course of business, Defendants violated and continue to violate 

federal and state laws by demanding additional monthly rental payments from Plaintiffs and 

Defendants’ other Section 8 tenants, in excess of the tenants’ portion of the rent due under their HAP 

Contracts and Tenancy Addendums, and in violation of those HAP Contracts, Tenancy Addendums, 

and HUD regulations. 

12. These additional payment demands include rental charges for washers and dryers, 

renter’s insurance, parking (covered and uncovered), garage rental, storage space rental, month-to-

month lease fees, “Rent Plus” (a credit reporting service), pet rent and other pet fees, and internet and 

cable service. 

2 
SIXTH AMENDED COMPLAINT - CASE NO. 2:15-CV-00799 KJM-DB 

871535.10 

http:871535.10


 

 
      

 

        

   

        

   

   

  

   

  

    

   

 

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DB  Document 331  Filed 11/30/23  Page 5 of 217 

13. Defendants have maintained policies and practices that treat the additional charges as 

rent and violate Section 8 tenants’ HAP Contracts, Tenancy Addendums, HUD regulations, and federal 

law. These policies and practices have included using tenant payments for contract rent to first pay for 

any additional charges due; combining contract rent and additional charges in standard forms 

informing tenants of their total “rental rate” and threatening to evict tenants for being in default under 

the rental agreement in that aggregate amount; deducting any unpaid additional charges from tenants’ 

security deposits; treating a failure to pay additional charges as a breach of the lease and grounds to 

terminate tenancy; threatening and in fact evict tenants for failure to pay additional charges; and 

requiring tenants to agree to certain additional monthly charges as a condition of leasing. 

14. In November 2022, this Court issued an order on the Parties’ cross-motions for 

summary judgment holding that Defendants’ practices effectively treat additional service charges like 

rent, that Defendants’ washer and dryer charges under the HAP Contracts in place prior to July 1, 2019 

were unlawful, and that Defendants’ mandatory renters’ insurance charges were excess rent.  The 

Court accordingly held that under Defendants’ policies and practices, the excess charges “outlined in 

the Additional Service Agreements constitute impermissible rent in violation of both the HAP 

contracts and federal law.” Summ. J. Order 9-13, No. 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DB (E.D. Cal. Nov. 23, 

2022). 

15. Following this Court’s order on summary judgment, Defendants’ Section 8 tenants who 

were required to pay additional service charges as a condition of leasing were informed for the first 

time that the charges were in fact optional in a letter disseminated by Defendants on or around January 

17, 2023.  Until they received that letter, Section 8 tenants were paying mandatory charges for media 

packages (Canyon Ridge, Cimarron Place, Devonshire Court East, Devonshire Court West, Falls at 

Hunters Pointe, the Lofts at 7800, Metropolitan Place Apartments, Rio Seco Apartments, and River 

Point Apartments), washers and dryers (Arcadia I, Arcadia II, Florentine Villas, and Kimpton Square), 

and parking (Crossroads Apartments and Promontory Point Apartments). 

16. Notwithstanding the Court’s summary judgment order, Defendants have continued 

several of the practices found by the Court to be unlawful. 
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17. Defendants continue to use form documents that describe the additional charges as part 

of the total monthly obligation or rental rate, or that combine additional charges and rent. 

18. Defendants continue to maintain policies and practices that require Section 8 tenants to 

pay their additional service charges to maintain their tenancy, including serving eviction notices for 

failing to pay additional service charges and/or refusing to accept rent payments if tenants have unpaid 

prior additional service charges, and otherwise treating a failure to pay additional charges as a breach 

of the lease and grounds to terminate tenancy. 

19. Even after the Court’s summary judgment order, Defendants have never informed their 

Section 8 tenants that they cannot be evicted for failure to pay additional service charges. 

20. Plaintiffs, the Class, and all of Defendants’ Section 8 tenants remain subject to present 

and future harm due to Defendants’ continued collection of unlawful additional rent. 

21. Through these unlawful actions, Defendants knowingly presented false and fraudulent 

claims for payment of approval to the United States and local public housing agencies, including the 

Sacramento County Housing and Redevelopment Agency. These actions by the Defendants have 

caused the United States and local public housing agencies to suffer economic damages. 

22. This action is brought in part under the United States False Claim Acts, 31 U.S.C. §§ 

3729 et seq. Plaintiffs seek all and any statutory share of any award made to the United States. The 

United States seeks all remedies available under the False Claims Act. 

PARTIES 

23. Defendants own and manage, or at relevant times have owned and managed, 69 

apartment communities with 16,344 units across five western states: California, Utah, Arizona, 

Colorado, and Washington. These properties range in size from 40 units to 661 units. 

24. Defendants were the owners and property managers, or the agents or employees of the 

owners and property managers, of the Subject Properties (defined as all properties managed by 

Defendant Wasatch Property Management during all relevant times in this action and that had one or 

more Section 8 tenants who were charged additional rent amounts beyond the amounts set forth in the 

HAP contracts), during all time periods relevant herein. 
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25. Defendants owned, controlled, and managed the Subject Properties, including renting 

the apartment units at the Properties. 

26. Defendant Wasatch Advantage Group, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, registered 

with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Wasatch Advantage 

Group, LLC, is an entity used by Defendants to own and/or manage properties including the Palm 

Avenue Property. Wasatch Advantage Group approved the sale of properties owned by Defendants 

Logan Park Apartments, LP, Logan Park Apartments, LLC, Oak Valley Apartments, LP, Oak Valley 

Apartments LLC, Bellwood Jerron Apartments, LP, Bellwood Jerron Holdings LLC, Point Natomas 

Apartments, LP, and Point Natomas Apartments, LLC. 

27. Defendant Chesapeake Apartment Holdings, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, 

registered with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Chesapeake 

Apartment Holdings is a signatory party to the September 20, 2010 HAP Contract for Plaintiff Denika 

Terry. A true and accurate copy of this HAP Contract is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit A. Upon 

information and belief, Defendant Chesapeake Apartment Holdings is also a signatory party to the 

HAP Contract for Plaintiff Tamera Livingston. 

28. Defendant Wasatch Property Management, Inc., is a corporation, registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Wasatch Property Management 

is a party to the June 30, 2011 Residential Rental Agreement with Plaintiff Roy Huskey III. A true and 

correct copy of this lease agreement is an attachment to the HAP Contract attached to the Complaint as 

Exhibit E. Defendant Wasatch Property Management is also a party to the Residential Rental 

Agreement with Plaintiff Tamera Livingston. A true and correct copy of this lease agreement is an 

attachment to the Complaint as Exhibit L. Defendant Wasatch Property Management also provided the 

Resident Ledgers for Plaintiffs Denika Terry, Roy Huskey III, and Tamera Livingston setting forth 

rents received, as well as the additional, unlawful rental charges for “Washer/Dryer Rental,” “Rental 

Insurance,” and “Covered Parking.” True and accurate copies of the Resident Ledgers are attached to 

the Complaint as Exhibits B and F and M. In addition, the HAP Contracts for Plaintiffs Denika Terry 

and Roy Huskey III direct that payments be mailed “cared of” Defendant Wasatch Property 
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Management. (Exhs. A & E.) Upon information and belief, the HAP Contract for Plaintiff Tamera 

Livingston also directs that payments be mailed “cared of” Defendant Wasatch Property Management. 

29. Both Defendants Chesapeake Apartment Holdings and Wasatch Property Management, 

Inc., received August 18, 2011 and/or August 10, 2012 Subsidy Adjustment Notices from the 

Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency for Plaintiff Denika Terry. True and accurate copies 

of these notices are attached to the Complaint as Exhibits C and D. 

30. Both Defendants Chesapeake Apartment Holdings and Wasatch Property Management, 

Inc., received December 9, 2014 and/or March 13, 2017 Subsidy Adjustment Notices from the 

Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency for Plaintiff Tamera Livingston. 

31. Defendant Logan Park Apartments, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, registered 

with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Logan Apartments, LP, 

is a limited partnership, registered with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. 

Defendant Logan Park Apartments, LLC and Defendant Logan Apartments, LP is or was an entity 

used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Logan Park Apartments, located at 4141 Palm 

Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95842. Logan Park Apartments is party to both the July 8, 2011 HAP 

Contract and July 30, 2011 Residential Rental Agreement for Plaintiff Roy Huskey III. (Exh. E). Based 

on documents produced by Defendants, Plaintiffs believe that Logan Park Apartments, LLC was an 

administrative general partner of Logan Park Apartments, LP, but that Defendants sold their interest in 

2015 to a third party. The directors of Defendant Wasatch Advantage Group approved the sale. The 

allegations contained in this action pertain to the period in which Defendant Wasatch Property 

Management managed the Logan Park Apartment property. Defendants have informed Plaintiffs that 

liability of Defendant Logan Park LLC for all actions including the conduct alleged here did not 

transfer in the 2015 sale. 

32. Defendant Wasatch Pool Holdings, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, registered 

with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Wasatch Pool Holdings 

is an entity used by Defendants to own and/or manage properties including the Data Drive Property. 

33. Defendant Aspen Park Holdings, LLC is a limited liability corporation registered with 

the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Aspen Park Holdings, LLC 
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is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Aspen Park Apartments, located at 

5152 Mack Road, Sacramento, CA 95823. Upon information and belief, Defendant Aspen Park 

Holdings, LLC is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a 

party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

34. Defendant Bellwood Jerron Apartments, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Bellwood Jerron Apartments, 

LLC is a limited liability corporation formerly registered with the Secretary of State to do business in 

the State of California. Defendant Bellwood Jerron Apartments, LP is or was an entity used by 

Defendants to own/manage properties including Bellwood Park Apartments, located at 339 Bell 

Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95838, and Jerron Place, located at 1730 Jerron Place, Sacramento, CA 

95825. Upon information and belief, Defendant Bellwood Park Apartments, LP is or was a party to 

Residential Rental Agreements for one or more Class members and is or was a party to HAP Contracts 

for one or more Class members during all relevant times. Based on documents produced by 

Defendants, Plaintiffs believe that Bellwood Jerron Apartments, LLC was an administrative general 

partner of Bellwood Jerron Apartments, LP, but that Defendants sold their interest in 2015 to a third 

party. The directors of Defendant Wasatch Advantage Group approved the sale. Bellwood Jerron, 

LLC’s registration has been cancelled with the Secretary of State. The allegations contained in this 

action pertain to the period in which Defendant Wasatch Property Management managed the Bellwood 

Park and Jerron Place properties. Defendants have informed Plaintiffs that liability of Bellwood Jerron, 

LLC for all actions including the conduct alleged here did not transfer in the 2015 sale. 

35. Defendant Bent Tree Apartments, LLC is a limited liability corporation registered with 

the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Bent Tree Apartments, LLC 

is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Bent Tree Apartments, located at 

4350 Galbraith Drive, Sacramento, CA 95842. Upon information and belief, Defendant Bent Tree 

Apartments, LLC is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is 

a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

36. Defendant California Place Apartments, LLC is a limited liability corporation registered 

with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant California Place 
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Apartments, LLC is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including California Place 

Apartments, located at 6633 Valley Hi Drive, Sacramento, CA 95823. Upon information and belief, 

Defendant California Place Apartments, LLC is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or 

more Class members and is a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

37. Defendant Camelot Lakes Holdings, LLC is a limited liability corporation formerly 

registered with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California and currently registered 

with the Secretary of State of Utah to do business in that state. Defendant Camelot Lake Holdings, 

LLC is or was an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Landing at Fancher 

Creek, 921 North Peach Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725. Upon information and belief, Defendant Camelot 

Lake Holdings, LLC is or was a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class 

members and is or was a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members during all relevant 

times. Defendants have informed Plaintiffs that Camelot Lakes Holdings, LLC sold its California 

properties and subsequently cancelled its registration with the Secretary of State. Defendant Camelot 

Lakes Holdings, LLC continues to own properties managed by Wasatch Property Management, LLC 

in Utah. The allegations contained in this action pertain to the period in which Defendants owned or 

managed the Landing at Fancher Creek property. 

38. Defendant Canyon Club Holdings, LLC is a limited liability corporation registered with 

the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Canyon Club Holdings, LLC 

is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Canyon Club Apartments, located 

at 305 North Canyon Drive, Oceanside, CA 92058. Upon information and belief, Defendant Canyon 

Club Holdings, LLC is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and 

is a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

39. Defendant Courtyard at Central Park Apartments, LLC is a limited liability corporation 

registered with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Courtyard at 

Central Park Apartments, LLC is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including 

Courtyard at Central Park, located at 4488 North Cornelia Ave., Fresno, CA 93722. Upon information 

and belief, Defendant Courtyard at Central Park Apartments is a party to Residential Rental 
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Agreements with one or more Class members and is a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class 

members. 

40. Defendant Creekside Holdings, LTD, is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Creekside Holdings, LTD is an 

entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Creekside Villa Apartments, located at 

4625 Nogal Street, San Diego, CA 92102. Upon information and belief, Defendant Creekside 

Holdings, LTD is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a 

party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

41. Defendant Hayward Senior Apartments, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Hayward Senior Apartments, LP 

is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Hayward Village, located at 

22078 Arbor Avenue, Hayward, CA 94541. Upon information and belief, Defendant Hayward Senior 

Apartments, LP is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a 

party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

42. Defendant Heritage Park Apartments, LP is a limited partnership corporation registered 

with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Heritage Park 

Apartments, LP is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Heritage Park 

Apartments, located at 2665 Clark Avenue, Norco, CA 92860. Upon information and belief, Defendant 

Heritage Park Apartments is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class 

members and is a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

43. Defendant Oak Valley Apartments, LLC is a limited liability corporation formerly 

registered with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Oak Valley 

Apartments, LLC is or was an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Oak 

Valley Apartments, located at 5520 Harrison Street, North Highlands, CA 95660. Upon information 

and belief, Oak Valley Apartments, LLC is or was a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one 

or more Class members and is or was a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members during 

all relevant times. Based on documents produced by Defendants, Plaintiffs believe that Oak Valley 

Apartments, LLC was an administrative general partner of Oak Valley Apartments, LP, but that 
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Defendants sold their interest in 2015 to a third party. The directors of Defendant Wasatch Advantage 

Group approved the sale. Defendants have informed Plaintiffs that Oak Valley Apartments LLC sold 

its properties in California and its registration was cancelled with the Secretary of State. The 

allegations contained in this action pertain to the period in which Defendant Wasatch Property 

Management managed the Oak Valley Apartments property. Defendants have informed Plaintiffs that 

liability of Defendant Oak Valley Apartments, LLC for all actions including the conduct alleged here 

did not transfer in the 2015 sale. 

44. Defendant Oak Valley Holdings, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Oak Valley Holdings, LP is or 

was an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Bridges at Five Oaks, located at 

5520 Harrison Street, North Highlands, CA 95660. Upon information and belief, Oak Valley Holdings, 

LP is or was a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is or was a 

party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members during all relevant times. Based on documents 

produced by Defendants, Plaintiffs believe that Defendants sold their interests in Bridges at Five Oaks 

in 2015. The directors of Defendant Wasatch Advantage Group approved the sale. The allegations 

contained in this action pertain to the period in which Defendant Wasatch Property Management 

managed the Bridges at Five Oaks property.   

45. Defendant Peppertree Apartment Holdings, LP is a limited partnership registered with 

the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Peppertree Apartment 

Holdings, LP is an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Peppertree Senior 

Apartments, located at 4956 Harness Street, Spring Valley, CA 91977. Upon information and belief, 

Peppertree Apartment Holdings, LP is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more 

Class members and is a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

46. Defendant Piedmont Apartments, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Piedmont Apartments, LP is an 

entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Piedmont Apartments, located at 215 

West MacArthur Boulevard, Oakland, 94611. Upon information and belief, Piedmont Apartments, LP 
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is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a party to HAP 

Contracts for one or more Class members. 

47. Defendant Point Natomas Apartments, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Point Natomas Apartments, 

LLC, was a limited liability corporation formerly registered with the Secretary of State to do business 

in the State of California. Defendant Point Natomas Apartments, LP is or was an entity used by 

Defendants to own/manage properties including Point Natomas Apartments, located at 801 San Juan 

Road, Sacramento, CA 95834. Upon information and belief, Point Natomas Apartments is or was a 

party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is or was a party to HAP 

Contracts for one or more Class members during all relevant times. Based on documents produced by 

Defendants, Plaintiffs believe that Defendant Point Natomas Apartments, LLC, was an administrative 

general partner of Point Natomas Apartments, LP, but that Defendants sold their interest in 2015 to a 

third party. The directors of Defendant Wasatch Advantage Group approved the sale. The allegations 

contained in this action pertain to the period in which Defendant Wasatch Property Management 

managed the Point Natomas Apartments property.   Defendants have informed Plaintiffs that liability 

of Defendant Point Natomas LLC for all actions including the conduct alleged here did not transfer in 

the 2015 sale. 

48. Defendant River Oaks Holdings, LLC is a limited liability corporation registered with 

the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant River Oaks Holdings, LLC is 

an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including River Oaks Apartments, located at 

580 West Fargo Avenue, Hanford, CA 93230. Upon information and belief, River Oaks Holdings, 

LLC is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a party to 

HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

49. Defendant Shadow Way Apartments, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Shadow Way Apartments, LP is 

an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Shadow Way Apartments, located at 

4707 Yuma Avenue, Oceanside, CA 92057. Upon information and belief, Shadow Way Apartments, 
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LP is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a party to HAP 

Contracts for one or more Class members. 

50. Defendant Spring Villa Apartments, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Spring Villa Apartments, LP is 

an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Spring Villa Apartments, located at 

8768 Jamacha Road, Spring Valley, CA 91977. Upon information and belief, Spring Villa Apartments, 

LP is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a party to HAP 

Contracts for one or more Class members. 

51. Defendant Sun Valley Holdings, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Sun Valley Holdings, LP is an 

entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Sun Valley Apartments, located at 4719 

50th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95823. Upon information and belief, Sun Valley Holdings, LP is a party 

to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a party to HAP Contracts for 

one or more Class members. 

52. Defendant Village Grove Apartments, LP is a limited partnership registered with the 

Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Village Grove Apartments, LP is 

an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Village Grove Apartments, located 

at 660 North Quince Street, Escondido, CA 92025. Upon information and belief, Village Grove 

Apartments, LP is a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or more Class members and is a 

party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members. 

53. Defendant Wasatch Quail Run GP, LLC is a limited liability corporation formerly 

registered with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of California. Defendant Wasatch 

Quail Run GP, LLC is or was an entity used by Defendants to own/manage properties including Quail 

Run Apartments, located at 1016 Bellevue Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95407. Upon information and 

belief, Wasatch Quail Run GP, LLC is or was a party to Residential Rental Agreements with one or 

more Class members and is or was a party to HAP Contracts for one or more Class members during all 

relevant times. Defendants have informed Plaintiffs that Wasatch Quail Run GP sold its properties in 

California and its registration with the Secretary of State was cancelled. The allegations contained in 
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this action pertain to the period in which Defendant Wasatch Property Management managed the Quail 

Run Apartments property. 

54. Defendant Wasatch Premier Properties, LLC is a limited liability corporate registered in 

Utah. Defendant Wasatch Premier Properties is the sole owner of Wasatch Pool Holdings and is a 

privately held real estate investment trust that has owned and/or managed at least 11 properties in 

California including Defendant Oak Valley Holdings LP during relevant times. Its agent is located at 

16027 Aviara Parkway, Suite 220, Carlsbad, CA 92011. Because Defendant Wasatch Premier 

Properties engages in regular business in California and has continuous and systematic contacts with 

California, it is subject to California laws and jurisdiction in California courts. 

55. Defendant Wasatch Pool Holdings III, LLC is a limited liability corporation registered 

in Utah. Defendant Wasatch Pool Holdings III is a wholly owned subsidiary of Wasatch Pool 

Holdings. Because Defendant Wasatch Pool Holdings III engages in regular business in California and 

has continuous and systematic contacts with California, it is subject to California laws and jurisdiction 

in California courts.  

56. Plaintiff Denika Terry resides in California, and is a single mother of two minor 

children. Denika Terry suffers from a disability as defined by state and federal law in that she suffers 

from bipolar disorder. At all times relevant to this action, Denika Terry’s sole sources of income were 

public assistance totaling approximately $4,408 per year for her and her two minor children. Because 

of her extremely limited income, Denika Terra received Section 8 rental assistance. 

57. Plaintiff Roy Huskey III resides in California, and is a single father of one minor child. 

At all times relevant to this Complaint, Roy Huskey III’s sole sources of income was public assistance 

totaling approximately $15,624 per year for him and his child. Because of his extremely limited 

income, Roy Huskey III received Section 8 rental assistance. 

58. Plaintiff Tamera Livingston resides in Rancho Cordova, CA. 

59. Plaintiff the United States of America is ex rel. Denika Terry, Roy Huskey III and 

Tamera Livingston. 
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JURISDICTION 

60. This court has federal subject matter jurisdiction because Plaintiffs bring this Complaint 

pursuant to the United States False Claim Acts, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 et seq. 

61. Venue is proper in this court because Defendants do business in its jurisdictional area, 

and the alleged unlawful conduct and damage to Plaintiffs, as well as the making of the contracts 

which are the subject of this action, occurred within its jurisdictional area. 

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM (“SECTION 8”) 

62. The Housing Choice Voucher Program is a federal program intended to assist low-

income families in obtaining decent, safe, sanitary, and affordable housing. The Program is authorized 

by Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, 42 U.S.C. § 1437f. Regulations governing the Section 8 

program are contained in 24 C.F.R. Part 982. 

63. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) 

administers the Section 8 program. HUD enters into annual contribution contracts with local public 

housing agencies such as the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency. 

64. Pursuant to the annual contribution contract, the local public housing agency may enter 

into a HUD form contract, or Housing Assistance Payments Contract (“HAP Contract”), with the 

landlord of a dwelling unit to make monthly housing assistance payments on behalf of an eligible 

tenant family. Generally, participating tenant families pay 30 to 40 percent of their adjusted monthly 

income toward the rent and utilities, while the public housing agency pays the balance. 

65. The HAP Contract contains federally-mandated terms and is on a HUD form. The HAP 

Contract continues until its expiration or termination by the owners, the participant family, or the 

public housing agency. 

66. The HAP Contract includes a Tenancy Addendum and/or Lease Supplemental 

Agreement that constitute the residential lease agreement between the landlord and tenant. If the 

landlord also provides a separate lease form to the tenant, that form must be approved by the public 

housing agency. The terms of the Tenancy Addendum and Lease Supplement Agreement are 

incorporated into and expressly supersede those of any separate lease form in the event of conflicting 

provisions. (Exh. E at 1.) 
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67. The HAP Contract for a particular dwelling unit establishes the initial lease term and 

total amount of monthly rent due from the tenant. The landlord may not increase the total rent payable 

to the landlord during the initial lease term. 

68. The HAP Contract also sets out the amount of the housing assistance payment by the 

public housing agency to the landlord, calculated in accordance with the regulations. 

69. The HAP Contract provides that the tenant is responsible for paying the landlord the 

balance of the total rent not covered by the housing assistance payment. 

70. The sum of the housing assistance payment by the public housing agency and the 

tenant’s share of the rent payable to the landlord under the HAP Contract is known as the contract rent. 

71. The sum of the housing assistance payment and the tenant’s share of the rent payable to 

the landlord may be adjusted due to market factors in the rental market and changes to a tenant’s 

income. These adjustments are made in accordance with HUD requirements. Notice of these 

adjustments to the contract rent are provided to the landlord and tenant by the public housing agency, 

through a subsidy adjustment notice. 

72. The regulations that govern payment of rent under a HAP Contract are contained in 24 

C.F.R. § 982.451. Subsection (b)(4)(ii) states: “The owner may not demand or accept any rent payment 

from the tenant in excess of the maximum and must immediately return any excess rent to the tenant.” 

73. Section 5(e) of Part C of the HAP Contract and Tenancy Addendum to the standard 

form HAP Contracts further provides: “The owner may not charge or accept, from the family or from 

any other source, any payment for rent of the unit in addition to the rent to owner. Rent to owner 

includes all housing services, maintenance, utilities and appliances to be provided and paid by the 

owner in accordance with the lease.” (Exh. E at 2.) 

74. Section 8 of Part A of all of the HAP Contract forms used by the U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development prior to July 1, 2019 specifically addresses “Utilities and 

Appliances,” requiring that: “Unless otherwise specified below, the owner shall pay for all utilities and 

appliances provided by the owner.” Section 5(c) of Part B of the HAP Contracts further requires that 

any “lease shall be consistent with the HAP contract” in this regard. 
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75. Section 7(b) of Part B of the HAP Contracts mandates that: “Unless the owner has 

complied with all provisions of the HAP contract, the owner does not have a right to receive housing 

assistance payments under the HAP contract.” 

CLASS DEFINITION AND GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

76. Plaintiffs also bring this case as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 23, seeking damages, injunctive, and other equitable relief on behalf of themselves, the 

United States, and all class members as defined below. 

77. The Court has certified Plaintiffs’ Rule 23(b)(3) class for damages/restitution defined as: 

All persons who, in the time period starting on April 14, 2011 (four years 
prior to the date of filing the initial Complaint in this action) through 
November 30, 2022, (1) have been tenants at any of Defendants’ California 
properties; (2) have participated in the“Section 8” Housing Choice Voucher 
Program in connection with their tenancies at the California properties; and 
(3) have paid additional charges set forth in Additional Services 
Agreements in excess of their individual portions of the contract rent set forth 
in the HAP Contracts. ECF Nos. 92, 114. 

78. The Court has also certified Plaintiffs’ Rule 23(b)(2) class for declaratory and injunctive 

relief defined as: 

All persons who: (1) are or will become tenants at any of Defendants’ 
California properties; (2) participate or will participate in the “Section 8” 
Housing Choice Voucher Program in connection with their tenancies at the 
California properties; and (3) pay or will pay additional charges set forth in 
Additional Services Agreements in excess of their individual portions of the 
contract rent set forth in theHAP Contracts. ECF No. 92. 

79. As used herein, the term “Class members” shall mean and refer to the members of the 

proposed classes described above. 

80. The “Class period” is designated as the time period starting on April 14, 2011, four 

years prior to the date of filing of the initial Complaint in this action. ECF No. 114 at 11. 

81. Plaintiffs reserve the right to seek leave to amend and expand the Class, and to add 

subclasses, if discovery and further investigation reveals such action is warranted. 

82. As discussed in more detail above, Defendants owned, controlled, and managed the units 

that Class members resided in during the Class Period. 
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Defendants Unlawfully Demand Additional Rental Charges. 

83. Throughout the Class period, Defendants have had a consistent policy and practice of 

unlawfully demanding additional rent payments, or “side payments,” from their tenants whose rent is 

subsidized through the Section 8 program at the Subject Premises. 

84. Upon information and belief, the HAP Contracts and Tenancy Addendums for the 

dwelling units in the Subject Premises are substantially identical with respect to all material terms, 

including the provisions described above that preclude the landlord from collecting payments from 

Class members that exceed their individual portion of the contract rent amount. 

85. Upon information and belief, Defendants use software to create standard numbered 

forms for use at their properties, with substantially the same relevant terms and provisions. 

86. Upon information and belief, Defendants colluded to devise and engage in this course of 

business conduct designed and intended to violate 42 U.S.C. § 1437f, 24 C.F.R. Part 982, and 

Defendants’ HAP Contracts and Tenancy Addendums with their Section 8tenants. 

87. During the course of the Class members’ tenancies, Defendants made unlawful 

demands to the Class members for additional rent payments, or “side payments,” in excess of the Class 

members’ individual shares of the contract rent pursuant to their HAP Contracts. 

88. As set forth in Defendants standard form LD303.0l “Additional Services Agreement,” 

Defendants’ demands for “side payments” included demands that Class Members pay additional rent 

for: washers and dryers, renter’s insurance, parking (covered and uncovered), garage rental, storage 

space rental, month-to-month lease fees, “Rent Plus” (a credit reporting service), pet rent and other pet 

fees, and internet and cable service. 

89. During the course of their tenancies, all Class members paid, or are in jeopardy of 

paying, Defendants these additional rent payments, or “side payments,” in excess of their individual 

shares of the contract rent pursuant to their HAP Contracts. 

90. Each of Defendants’ demands for additional rent and receipt of these side payments 

from Class members violated 42 U.S.C. § 1437f, 24 C.F.R. Part 982, and the Class members’ Tenancy 

Addendums and HAP Contracts. 
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91. In November 2022, this Court issued an order on the Parties’ cross-motions for 

summary judgment holding that Defendants’ practices effectively treat additional service charges like 

rent, and that those excess charges “outlined in the Additional Service Agreements constitute 

impermissible rent in violation of both the HAP contracts and federal law.” Summ. J. Order 9-13, No. 

2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DB (E.D. Cal. Nov. 23, 2022). Notwithstanding this Court’s summary judgment 

order, Defendants have continued several of the practices found by the Court to be unlawful.  

92. Defendants continue to use form documents that describe the additional charges as part 

of the total monthly obligation or rental rate, or that combine additional charges and rent. Defendants 

confirmed in deposition that there is no practical or business-related barrier that prevents them from 

adding language to these forms to clarify that the additional services are optional for Section 8 tenants 

and that Section 8 tenants cannot be evicted for failure to pay them. 

93. Discovery following the Court’s summary judgment order has confirmed that 

Defendants continue to maintain policies and practices that require Section 8 tenants to pay their 

additional service charges to maintain their tenancy and treat a failure to pay additional charges as a 

breach of the lease and grounds to terminate tenancy. 

94. In the months following the Court’s summary judgment order, Defendants have 

continued to serve Class Members notices demanding that they pay additional service charges or 

vacate their units, and informing them that if they fail to do so, Defendants will commence eviction 

proceedings.  

95. On information and belief, Defendants continue to inform Section 8 tenants that if they 

do not pay outstanding additional service charges, Defendants will refuse to accept future rent 

payments.  A landlord’s refusal to accept rent payments can result in a tenant being evicted. 

96. Defendants maintain a policy and practice of talking tenants into vacating their 

apartments to avoid eviction proceedings, rather than formally filing in court.  As a result, many 

Section 8 tenants who are served eviction notices may never learn that the delinquent charges listed on 

the notice cannot be a basis for eviction. 

97. Even after the Court’s summary judgment order, Defendants have never informed their 

Section 8 tenants that they cannot be evicted for failure to pay additional service charges. 
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98. Plaintiff Tamera Livingston and the Rule 23(b)(2) Class remain subject to Defendants’ 

continued collection of unlawful additional rent, including the risk of being forced to pay additional 

rent due to Defendants’ policies and practices, and the risk of facing eviction or loss of housing 

because of non-payment of these unlawful additional rent charges. 

99. Subsequent damages actions are inadequate to protect Plaintiff Tamera Livingston and 

the Rule 23(b)(2) Class from further demands for additional rent payments as failure to make the 

additional rent payments can jeopardize a tenant’s housing long before a damages action can be 

resolved. 

100. Absent a court order, Defendants will continue their policies and practices exposing 

Section 8 tenants to this present and future harm. 

101. The additional rent payments that Defendants have unlawfully collected are individually 

so small that it is economically unfeasible for the Class members to pursue their remedies through 

individual actions. 

Defendants Are Liable for Their Unlawful Conduct Under Alter Ego, Single Enterprise, Agency, 
and Other Theories of Vicarious Liability. 

102. Each and every Defendant was at all relevant times the agent, employee, alter ego, 

and/or joint venturer of other Defendants, and they acted within the scope of that agency, employment, 

or alter ego, and/or in furtherance of the joint venture. 

103. In committing the acts complained of herein, each Defendant acted as the authorized 

agent, employee, alter ego, or representative of each other Defendant. Each act of each Defendant 

complained of herein was committed within the scope of said agency, employment, alter ego or other 

vicarious representation, and each act was ratified by each other Defendant. Each Defendant is liable, 

in whole or in part, for the damages and injuries suffered by Class members. 

104. As further alleged below, at all relevant times, Defendants were the alter egos of one 

another. There exists a unity of interest and ownership among Defendants such that any individuality 

and separateness between them has ceased to exist, so that the same personnel who serve as officers for 

Defendant Wasatch Property Management completely control, dominate, manage, and operate all other 

Defendant entities. 

19 
SIXTH AMENDED COMPLAINT - CASE NO. 2:15-CV-00799 KJM-DB 

871535.10 

http:871535.10


 

 
      

 

    

   

    

  

   

 

  

  

  

   

 

 

  

    

 

    

  

 

   

  

   

   

 

   

 

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DB  Document 331  Filed 11/30/23  Page 22 of 217 

105. Plaintiffs further and in the alternative allege that Defendants are sister or affiliate 

entities and were at all relevant times acting as a single enterprise to manage the Subject Properties and 

engage in the unlawful conduct alleged in this action. As such, this single enterprise must be held to 

respond as a whole for the liabilities and debts of all constituent entity Defendants. 

106. Audited financial records disclosed during discovery demonstrate that Defendants 

Wasatch Pool Holdings, LLC, Wasatch Pool Holdings III, LLC, and other named Defendants that hold 

specific property assets are wholly owned subsidiaries of Defendant Wasatch Premier Properties. 

Wasatch Premier Properties and its subsidiaries own many of the Subject Properties at issue in this 

case. 

107. Defendant Wasatch Premier Properties and/or its owners have affirmed that it is the 

guarantor of and personally liable for the debts of its subsidiary Wasatch Property Holdings. Plaintiffs 

continue to conduct discovery as to whether other Defendants hold themselves out as liable for the 

debts of other Defendants. 

108. Defendants Wasatch Advantage Group, Wasatch Property Management, LLC, Wasatch 

Premier Properties, LLC, and others also hold themselves out in public documents as operating as a 

joint enterprise. 

109. Defendants Wasatch Premier Properties, LLC, and Wasatch Pool Holdings, LLC, hold 

themselves out, in documents provided to government agencies, as owners of properties that are in fact 

nominally held by other Defendants; 

110. On information and belief, Defendants Wasatch Premier Properties, LLC, and Wasatch 

Property Holdings, LLC, among other Defendants, formed and used other Defendant entities to 

transfer to them the existing debts and liabilities. 

111. Defendants have also formed multiple entities for the sole or primary purpose of 

facilitating transactions such as acquiring other properties from third parties under common ownership 

or obtaining more favorable debt financing.  

112. Plaintiffs are also informed and believe that Defendants have at all relevant times 

commingled funds and failed to properly segregate funds. Plaintiffs continue to seek discovery on this 

issue. 
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113. Defendants, including Wasatch Property Management, Wasatch Property Holdings, 

LLC, and Wasatch Advantage Group, LLC, have overlapping and in many cases identical directors 

and/or officers. These identical directors include but are not limited to Dell Loy Hansen, Bradley 

Mishler, and Scott Stettler, who have at all relevant times been employed at Wasatch Property 

Management. Directors Hansen, Mishler and Stettler, among others, are also presumed to be 

employees or agents of multiple Defendants and perform work for multiple Defendants. Plaintiffs 

continue to conduct discovery into the exact employment relationships among Defendants. 

114. The Chief Operating Officer of Defendant Wasatch Property Management from 2016 

until July 2021 described himself on his email signature and company biography on Defendants’ 

website as Chief Operating Officer for “Wasatch Premier Communities,” which is not a separate legal 

entity, but rather a fictitious name used by Defendants to refer to the collection of Wasatch-affiliated 

entities that own and invest in the Subject Properties and other residential properties. 

115. Multiple named Defendants, including but not limited to Wasatch Advantage Group, 

LLC,  Wasatch Property Management, Inc., Wasatch Premier Properties, LLC, Wasatch Pool Holdings 

III, LLC, Aspen Park Holdings, LLC, Bent Tree Apartments, LLC, California Place Apartments, LLC, 

Camelot Lakes Holdings, LLC, Canyon Club Holdings, LLC, Chesapeake Apartment Holdings, LLC, 

Courtyard at Central Park Apartments, LLC, Oak Valley Apartments, LLC, and Wasatch Quail Run 

GP, LLC, and River Oaks Holdings, LLC, are entities registered to the same address in Logan, UT.  

116. Defendants Peppertree Apartment Holding, LP, Piedmont Apartments, LP, Village 

Group Apartments, and Wasatch Advantage Group are entities registered to the same agent and 

address in Mission Viejo, CA.  

117. Defendants Bellwood Jerron Apartments LP, Logan Park Apartments LP, and Point 

Natomas Apartments LP are registered to the same agent and address in San Francisco, CA. 

118. Defendants also share common in-house legal services and accounting services and use 

common databases, email systems, and other computer systems. 

119. Relevant documents disclosed also indicate that Wasatch Property Management and/or 

its agents and employees, including Dell Loy Hansen, as a majority shareholder of multiple 
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Defendants, exercise control over other Defendant entities, and use them as instrumentalities or 

conduits for their business with respect to the alleged misconduct. 

120. Based on financial documents disclosed in discovery, Plaintiffs allege that entities 

owned, operated and/or controlled by Defendant Wasatch Premier Properties, LLC, were 

undercapitalized and subject to its financial decision-making. 

121. The closely-held nature and the substantially overlapping and, in some cases, identical 

members, owners, and shareholders among multiple Defendant entities demonstrate a failure to 

maintain arms’ length relationships in their business transactions. They have also used the corporate 

form to procure additional property and obtain favorable debt financing for other named Defendants. 

Further information on these issues is in the possession of Defendants, and Plaintiffs continue to 

conduct discovery into these issues.  

122. Information that can establish that Defendants are engaged in a joint venture or single 

enterprise, are agents of one another, and/or in equity should be considered alter egos of one another 

and held vicariously liable as such, is within the exclusive control of the Defendants.  Plaintiffs 

continue to seek discovery from Defendants of this information.  

123. Because of the unity of interest and ownership among the named Defendants, adherence 

to the fiction of a separate existence of each corporate Defendant and treatment of their acts as 

individual and distinct from each other would allow an abuse of the corporate privilege, and promote 

unjust and inequitable results. 

124. In litigating this action since 2015, Defendants have held themselves out as the owners 

and managers of properties nominally owed and/or managed by other Defendants. Defendants have 

responded to discovery, testified, answered for, brought and defended against motions, and otherwise 

extensively litigated this action for all of the Subject Properties. Defendants have been represented by a 

single counsel and have by their actions, for the substantial majority of the litigation, suggested to 

Plaintiffs and the Court that they are operating as a single entity, with shared practices, procedures, 

defenses, and liability for the acts alleged in this action. 

125. Defendants have abused the corporate form by creating multiple entities and unevenly 

dispersing both revenues and liabilities deriving from the unified policies controlled by a single set of 
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decisionmakers who dominate all of the entities across a complex network of entities. Injustice would 

result should only certain Defendants be held liable for the acts only nominally belonging to parents 

and/or sister subsidiaries, and should other Defendant entities be permitted to retain the unjust 

enrichment they have gained as a result of the unlawful conduct alleged in this action. 

126. Upon information and belief, during the Class period, Defendants were Qui tam 

plaintiffs’ and Class members’ landlords, and Qui tam plaintiffs and Class members were Defendants’ 

tenants, as those terms, “landlord” and “tenant,” are defined under 24 C.F.R. Part 982 and the relevant 

HAP Contracts and Tenancy Addendums. 

Defendants Treat Additional Charges as Rent. 

127. Defendants have a policy and practice of treating these additional charges as rent. 

Defendants’ standard form LD302.0I “Residential Rental Agreement” has provided at all relevant 

times either that: (1) “All payments received for rent and additional charges shall first be applied to 

any past balance due and then to additional charges and then to current rent.”; or (2) “Rent received 

shall first be applied to all sums due and then to the current rent due” (emphasis added). 

128. Defendants confirmed this policy at deposition—specifically, that Section 8 tenants 

who failed to pay additional charges had those amounts deducted from their next monthly rental 

payment, and that this deduction resulted in a default in rent. Following this Court’s November 

summary judgment order, Defendants have changed their internal payment sequence process. 

129. Also confirming this policy, Defendants continue to use standard form “Resident 

Ledgers” and “Move Out Statements” in accounting for charges to, payments by, and balances of 

Section 8 tenants. These documents show that Defendants treat contract rent and additional charges 

identically—combining them in the same running balance and with any rental payments by tenants 

applied to that balance, regardless of the nature of the charge or payment. 

130. Under the subsection for “Rent,” Defendants standard form Rental Agreement provides 

for a total monthly amount due that expressly combines contract rent and additional charges. 

131. Defendants also continue to combine contract rent and additional rental charges in 

standard forms: 1) LD315.01 “60-Day Notice of Resident’s Intent to Vacate”; 2) LD101.06 an initial 

move-in form (which also totals both contract rent and additional rental charges in “First Month’s 
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Rent”); 3) LD301.02 “Monthly Cost Breakdown”; and 4) “Monthly Statement of Rental Account” 

(which also totals both contract rent and additional rental charges in informing Section 8 tenants when 

“rent will be due,” and the consequences of failure to paysuch rent). 

132. Moreover, Defendants’ standard form RS104.04 “Renewal Notification,” expressly 

informs Section 8 tenants that contract rent and additional rental charges are part of the same total 

“rental rate”: “When you renew your lease your new rental rate will be $______, this rate includes rent 

and any applicable service items (such as parking, renter’s insurance, pet, etc.).” Similarly, 

Defendants’ standard form RS104.02 “Simplify Your Life” provides: “Weare excited to offer you this 

lease at the rate of $______ per month, this rate includes rent and any applicable service items (such as 

parking, renter’s insurance, pet, etc.).” 

133. Defendants also continue to have a policy and practice of deducting any unpaid additional 

charges from Section 8 tenants’ security deposits, even though the rental agreement limits deductions 

from the security deposit for nonpayment to defaults in “rent” and utilities. 

134. Defendants continue to use form documents that describe the additional charges as part 

of the total monthly obligation or rental rate, or that combine additional charges and rent even 

following this Court’s November summary judgment order. 

Defendants Treat Additional Charges as Grounds for Eviction. 

135. Defendants also treat additional charges as rent because Defendants have a policy and 

practice of treating unpaid additional charges as grounds for terminating tenancies and evicting Section 

8 tenants. 

136. Defendants’ standard form LD303.0l “Additional Services Agreement,” setting forth 

the additional charges, provided at relevant times that: “A default under this Agreement is a default 

under the Lease . . . . If Lessee fails to pay any Monthly Fee when due or if Lessee fails to perform any 

other obligation contained in the Agreement within the time required, [such failure] . . . shall cause 

[Wasatch] to terminate the Resident’s tenancy . . . .” 

137. At deposition, Defendants admitted that it is in fact Defendants’ policy and practice to 

declare a breach of the lease if a tenant defaults on additional charges, because the “Additional 

Services Agreement” itself is made a part of the lease. 
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138. Defendants use standard form 3-day, 5-day, and 10-day notices to comply with lease or 

quit, to threaten Section 8 tenants with eviction for failure to pay additional charges. At deposition, 

Defendants admitted that it istheir policy to threaten eviction forfailure topay additional charges. 

139. Inparticular, Defendants usestandard form EC101.03“THREE-DAY NOTICE TO 

PERFORM FINANCIAL COVENANT OF LEASE OR QUIT,” to threaten tenants with eviction for 

failure to pay additional charges. As the standard form provides: “Your lease provides that you are 

obligated topay the following charges, which you have failed todo:[listing unpaid additional charges, 

such as renter’s insurance, parking, washer/dryer, etc.].” As the form continues:“You have breached the 

leasedue to the following infractions: Failure topayamount due in accordance with theabove referenced 

item(s). Within three (3)daysafter services of this notice, you must do the following: Pay to [Wasatch] 

the sum of $[the total additional charges owed] to cure the breach of the lease agreement. Or deliver 

possession of the premises to the undersigned. Your failure to perform thecovenant breached as 

specified, or vacate thepremises within three (3) days, will cause the undersigned to initiate legal 

proceedings against you to declare the forfeiture of your rental agreement, recover possession of the 

premises, and toseek judgment for rentowed through theexpiration dateof thisnotice, together with 

damages foreach dayofoccupancy after that date, attorney fees ifprovided for in your rental agreement . . . 

. [Y]ou can make your rental payments at IsYourHome.com.” 

140. Defendants also use standard form ECl0l.01 to threaten Section 8 tenants with eviction for 

being“indefault under theRental Agreement in theaggregate amount of $___.” Defendants’ policy and 

practice is to include both contract rent and additional charges in this aggregate amount. Thestandard 

form further provides that:“Partial payments are not accepted by management”—meaning that tenants 

cannot pay only their contract rent owed to avoid eviction, but instead must payalladditional charges 

too. Defendants specifically threaten that: “WITHIN 5 DAYSafter your receiptof thisnotice, you are 

required to paysaid delinquent sums in full. Otherwise, your Rental Agreement shall thereupon 

immediately terminate and legal proceedings will be commenced against you to (1) recover possession 

of said apartment, (2) assess reasonable attorney’s fees, court/other costs and (3) recover damages, all in 

connection with your default under the Rental Agreement.” 

141. Defendants evict Section 8 tenants for failure to pay additional charges. 
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142. Notwithstanding the Court’s summary judgment order in November 2022, Defendants 

have continued to maintain policies and practices that require Section 8 tenants to pay their additional 

service charges to maintain their tenancy, including serving three-day eviction notices for failing to 

pay additional service charges and/or refusing to accept rent payments if tenants have unpaid prior 

additional service charges. 

143. Even after the Court’s summary judgment order, Defendants have never informed their 

Section 8 tenants that they cannot be evicted for failure to pay additional service charges. 

Defendants’ Additional Charges Are Conditions of Leasing. 

144. Defendants also treat a number of their additional charges as rent because those charges 

are—or were during relevant times—mandatory conditions of leasing an apartment. These charges 

include renter’s insurance, in-unit washer and dryers, parking at certain properties, month-to-month 

fees, pest and bedbug control, pet fees, and cable at certain properties. 

145. Defendants’ standard form LD302.01 rental agreement prior to December 1, 2019 

provided: “Effective December 1, 2003, Wasatch Property Management requires each resident(s) to 

maintain Renters Insurance with a minimum [amount of] Personal Liability Coverage . . . . If at any 

time during the term of this lease, resident(s) is without coverage and in default of their lease, 

resident(s) agrees to automatically be enrolled in the ‘pay along with rent’ program and be charged 

accordingly.” 

146. Similarly, Defendants’ standard form LD101.06 for initial move-in provides: “As of 

December l, 2003, Wasatch Premier Communities requires each resident to maintain Resident’s 

Insurance with a minimum [amount of] Liability Coverage.” Defendants’ standard form LD101.03 

“Applicant Consent,” renter’s insurance requirement letter, and website have the same or similar 

language. These documents further describe the paperwork and cover details required if a tenant 

chooses to obtain renter’s insurance “from an approved list of carriers.” 

147. The standard Applicant Consent form also provides: “As a condition of leasing, 

Residents may be required to subscribe to [bulk cable] services.” 
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148. A number of Defendants’ standard forms describe month-to-month fees required from 

tenants who do not have a longer lease agreement. At deposition, Defendants admitted that month-to-

month fees are part of the total rent. 

149. At deposition, Defendants confirmed that additional charges for in-unit washers and 

dryers, as well as parking at certain properties, were conditions of tenancy until some time after filing 

this lawsuit. Defendants also admitted that pet fees are a condition of tenancy for all tenants with pets, 

and that Defendants have a policy of charging tenants for bedbug-related pest control. 

150. Defendants also had a policy and practice of requiring tenants to pay non-refundable 

application, additional application, and lease initiation fees at move-in, as a condition of tenancy. 

151. Following this Court’s order on summary judgment, Defendants’ Section 8 tenants who 

were required to pay additional service charges as a condition of leasing were informed for the first 

time that the charges were in fact optional in a letter disseminated by Defendants on or around January 

17, 2023. 

CLASS REPRESENTATIVES 

Plaintiff Denika Terry 

152. During the Class Period, Plaintiff Denika Terry received housing assistance from the 

Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency (“Sacramento Housing Agency”) under the Section 8 

program. 

153. Denika Terry is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at all relevant times, 

Defendants were her landlords, and she was Defendants’ tenant, as those terms, “landlord” and 

“tenant,” are defined under 24 C.F.R. Part 982 and the relevant HAP Contract. 

154. On or about September 20, 2010, Denika Terry and Defendants reached an agreement 

for the rental of Apartment No. 391 of the Data Drive Property (“Terry Residence”}, subject to the 

approval of the Sacramento Housing Agency. 

155. On or about September 20, 2010, the Sacramento Housing Agency, Denika Terry, and 

Defendants approved the rental agreement and entered into a HAP Contract for the Terry Residence. A 

true and accurate copy of this HAP Contract is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit A. Pursuant to the 

HAP Contract, rent for the Terry Residence was $860 per month, with the Sacramento Housing Agency 
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responsible for $860 of the contract rent, and Denika Terry responsible for none of the contract rent. 

Section S(e) of Part C of the Tenancy Addendum to the Terry HAP Contract further provides: “The 

owner may not charge or accept, from the family or from any other source, any payment for rent of the 

unit in addition to the rent to owner. Rent to owner includes all housing services, maintenance, utilities 

and appliances to be provided and paid by the owner in accordance with the lease.” 

156. Denika Terry occupied the Terry Residence pursuant to the HAP Contract, from 

approximately September 20, 2010, to March 20, 2013. 

157. During the course of the tenancy, the Sacramento Housing Agency sent Defendants and 

Denika Terry annual subsidy adjustment notices. True and accurate copies of the relevant notices are 

attached to the Complaint as Exhibits C and D. 

158. The first subsidy adjustment notice, effective October 1, 2011, increased the rent 

amount to $939 per month, with the Sacramento Housing Agency continuing to pay all of the contract 

rent. The second subsidy adjustment notice, effective October 1, 2012, did not change the rent amount, 

but decreased the Sacramento Housing Agency’s assistance payment to $729 per month, and increased 

Denika Terry’s portion to $210 per month. 

159. In accordance with the HAP Contract and subsidy adjustment notices, the Sacramento 

Housing Agency paid Defendants housing assistance payments in the amounts of: 1) $315, prorated, 

for the month of September 2010; 2) $860 per month from October 2010 through September 2011; 3) 

$939 per month from October 2011 through September 2012; and 4) $729 per month from October 

2012 through March 2013. 

160. In sum, HUD and the Sacramento Housing Agency made a total of at least 31 rental 

payments to Defendants totaling $26,277 for Denika Terry. 

161. Upon information and belief, at all times during Denika Terry’s tenancy, the 

Sacramento Housing Agency paid the housing assistance payments directly to Defendants. 

162. Beginning on or around September 20, 2010, and continuing throughout Denika Terry’s 

tenancy, Defendants demanded that she pay them additional rent payments, or “side payments,” not set 

forth in her HAP Contract or subsidy adjustment notices. Defendants made these “side payment” 
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demands to Denika Terry on a monthly basis, including demands that she pay extra rent for: I) washer 

and dryer rentals, 2) renter’s insurance, and 3) covered parking charges. 

163. These demands for “side payments” are reflected in the Defendants’ Resident Ledger 

for the Terry Residence. A true and accurate copy of the Resident Ledger is attached to the Complaint 

as Exhibit B. 

164. A comparison of the relevant HAP Contract and subsidy adjustment notices with the 

Residential Ledger demonstrates that Defendants made demands for “side payments” from Denika 

Terry for each month that she lived at the Terry Residence. 

165. Defendants demanded that Denika Terry make “side payments” in violation of the HAP 

Contract on at least 72 occasions. 

166. As a result, Defendants demanded and Denika Terry paid $1,953.89 in additional rent 

payments from September 2010 through March 2013. In contrast, the amount of contract rent that 

Denika Terry was responsible for the entirety of this time period, as set forth in the HAP Contract and 

subsidy adjustment notices, was only $1,260. Thus, Defendants charged Denika Terry more in total 

unlawful rent payments than the total amount of rent for which she was responsible under the HAP 

Contract. 

167. Defendants threatened to evict Denika Terry and her family if she did not pay these 

additional rental amounts. 

168. Defendants ultimately filed an eviction action against Denika Terry for not making the 

unlawfully demanded “side payments.” 

169. Neither the Sacramento Housing Agency nor HUD authorized Defendants to charge or 

collect these additional rent payments. To the contrary, these demands for additional rent payments 

were barred by the HAP Contract, Tenancy Addendum, and applicable Section 8 rules and related 

regulations, as described above. 

170. Defendants never informed Denika Terry that the Section 8 rules, the HAP Contract, 

and Tenancy Addendum prohibited them from demanding these additional rent payments. 

171. Due to Defendants’ demands and threats of eviction, Denika Terry agreed to their 

demands for additional rent payments so that she would not lose her home and Section 8 voucher. 
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172. Defendants’ additional charges to Denika Terry were also treated by Defendants as rent 

and were mandatory, pursuant to Defendants’ policies and procedures discussed in detail above. 

173. Plaintiff Denika Terry suffered emotional distress, physical injury, overpayment of rent, 

and out-of-pocket expenses as a result of the acts and omissions committed by Defendants. 

Plaintiff Roy Huskey III 

174. During the Class Period, Plaintiff Roy Huskey III received housing assistance from the 

Sacramento Housing Agency under the Section 8 program. 

175. Roy Huskey III is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at all relevant times, 

Defendants were his landlords, and he was Defendants’ tenant, as those terms, “landlord” and “tenant,” 

are defined under 24 C.F.R. Part 982 and the relevant HAP Contract. 

176. On or about June 30, 2011, Roy Huskey III and Defendants reached an agreement for 

the rental of Apartment No. 191 of the Palm Avenue Property (“Huskey III Residence”), subject to the 

approval of the Sacramento Housing Agency. 

177. On or about July 8, 2011, the Sacramento Housing Agency, Roy Huskey III, and 

Defendants approved the rental agreement and entered into a HAP Contract for the Huskey III 

Residence. A true and accurate copy of this HAP Contract is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit E. 

Pursuant to the HAP Contract rent for the Huskey III Property was $840 per month, with the 

Sacramento Housing Agency responsible for $554 of the contract rent, and Roy Huskey III responsible 

for $286 of the contract rent. Section 5(e) of Part C of the Tenancy Addendum to the Huskey III HAP 

Contract further provides: “The owner may not charge or accept, from the family or from any other 

source, any payment for rent of the unit in addition to the rent to owner. Rent to owner includes all 

housing services, maintenance, utilities and appliances to be provided and paid by the owner in 

accordance with the lease.” 

178. Roy Huskey III amended his lease and tenancy in mid-2015. 

179. During the course of the tenancy, the Sacramento Housing Agency sent Defendants and 

Roy Huskey III annual subsidy adjustment notices. 

180. In accordance with the HAP Contract and subsidy adjustment notices, the Sacramento 

Housing Agency paid the Defendants housing assistance payments in the amounts of: 1) $16.67, 
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prorated, for the month of June 2011; 2) $500 for the month of July 2011; 3)$554 per month from August 

2011 through August 2012; 4)$536 per month from September 2012 through June 2013; and 5) $524 per 

month from beginning in July 2013 through the present. 

181. In sum, HUDand theSacramento Housing Agency made a total of at least 34 rental 

payments to Defendants totaling $17,848.67, as of March 3, 2014. 

182. Upon information and belief, at all timesduring RoyHuskey III’s tenancy, the Sacramento 

HousingAgency paid the housingassistancepaymentsdirectly toDefendants. 

183. Beginning onoraround July8,2011,andcontinuing throughout Roy Huskey III’s tenancy, 

Defendants demanded that hepaythem additional rent payments,or“side payments,” notset forth in his 

HAPContractorsubsidyadjustment notices. Defendants made these “side payment”demands toRoy 

Huskey IIIon amonthly basis, includingdemands thathepayextra rent for: 1) washer and dryer rentals; 

and 2) renter’s insurance. 

184. These demands for“side payments” are reflected in the Defendants’ Resident Ledger for 

theHuskeyIIIResidence. Atrueand accurate copyof theResident Ledger through March 3, 2014, is 

attached as Exhibit F. 

185. A comparison of the HAP Contract with the Resident Ledger demonstrates that 

Defendants madedemands for“side payments” from RoyHuskey III foreach month thathelived at the 

Huskey III Property, through March 3,2014. 

186. Defendants demanded that RoyHuskey IIImake“side payments” in violation of the HAP 

Contract on at least 70 occasions, as of March 3, 2014. 

187. Asaresult, Defendants demanded and Roy Huskey III paid at least $2,239.98 in 

additional rent payments from June 1,2011, through March 3,2014. Incontrast, theamount of contract 

rent that RoyHuskey IIIwas responsible for theentiretyof this timeperiod, asset forth in the HAP 

Contract and subsidy adjustment notices, was only $9,363.30. 

188. Defendants threatened toevict Roy Huskey IIIand his family if he did not pay these 

additional rental amounts. 

189. Neither the Sacramento Housing Agency nor HUD authorized Defendants to charge or 

collect these additional rent payments. To the contrary, these demands for additional rent payments 
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were barred by the HAP Contract, Tenancy Addendum, and applicable Section 8 rules and related 

regulations, as described above. 

190. Defendants never informed Roy Huskey III that the Section 8 rules, HAP Contract, and 

Tenancy Addendum prohibit them from demanding these additional rent payments. 

191. Due to Defendants’ demands and threats of eviction, Roy Huskey III agreed to their 

demands for additional rent payments so that he would not lose his home and Section 8 voucher. 

192. Defendants’ additional charges to Roy Huskey III are also treated by Defendants as rent 

and are mandatory, pursuant to Defendants’ policies and procedures discussed in detail above. 

193. Plaintiff Roy Huskey III suffered emotional distress, physical injury, overpayment of 

rent, and out-of-pocket expenses as a result of the acts and omissions committed by Defendants. 

Plaintiff Tamera Livingston 

194. During the Class Period, Plaintiff Tamera Livingston received housing assistance from 

the Sacramento Housing Agency under the Section 8 program. 

195. Tamera Livingston is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at all relevant 

times, Defendants were her landlords, and she was Defendants’ tenant, as those terms, “landlord” and 

“tenant,” are defined under 24 C.F.R. Part 982 and the relevant HAP Contract. 

196. On or about August 1, 2012, Tamera Livingston and Defendants reached an agreement 

for the rental of Apartment No. 491 of the Data Drive Property (“Livingston Residence”), subject to 

the approval of the Sacramento Housing Agency. 

197. Upon information and belief, in 2012, the Sacramento Housing Agency, Tamera 

Livingston, and Defendants approved the rental agreement and entered into a HAP Contract for the 

Livingston Residence. Upon information and belief, pursuant to the HAP Contract, rent for the 

Livingston Residence was $882 per month, with the Sacramento Housing Agency responsible for $882 

of the contract rent, and Tamera Livingston responsible for none of the contract rent. Upon information 

and belief, section 5(e) of Part C of the Tenancy Addendum to the Livingston HAP Contract further 

provides: “The owner may not charge or accept, from the family or from any other source, any payment 

for rent of the unit in addition to the rent to owner. Rent to owner includes all housing services, 

32 
SIXTH AMENDED COMPLAINT - CASE NO. 2:15-CV-00799 KJM-DB 

871535.10 

http:871535.10


 

 
      

 

  

 

            

   

           

   

  

 

 

 

   

  

 

    

            

           

  

     

         

        

         

      

    

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DB  Document 331  Filed 11/30/23  Page 35 of 217 

maintenance, utilities and appliances to be provided and paid by the owner in accordance with the 

lease.” 

198. Tamera Livingston has occupied the Livingston Residence pursuant to the HAP 

Contract, from approximately August 1, 2012 to present. 

199. During the course of the tenancy, the Sacramento Housing Agency sent Defendants and 

Tamera Livingston annual subsidy adjustment notices. 

200. Upon information and belief, in accordance with the HAP Contract and subsidy 

adjustment notices, the Sacramento Housing Agency paid Defendants housing assistance payments in 

the amounts of: 1) $497.00, prorated, for the month of August 2012; 2) $882 per month from 

September 2012 through January 2013; 3) $713 per month from February 2013 through April 2013; 

and 4) $882 per month from May 2013 through January 2015; 5) $786.00 per month from February 

2015 through June 2015; 6) $829.00 per month from July 2015 through January 2016; 7) $812.00 per 

month from February 2016 through March 2017; 8) $820.00 per month from April 2017 to March 

2018; (9) $898.00 per month from April 2018 through at least February 2019. The Sacramento 

Housing Agency continues to pay Defendants housing assistance payments for Tamera Livingston. 

201. According to information produced by Defendants, HUD and the Sacramento Housing 

Agency made rental payments to Defendants totaling over $85,586.44 for Tamera Livingston. 

202. Upon information and belief, at all times during Tamera Livingston’s tenancy, the 

Sacramento Housing Agency paid the housing assistance payments directly to Defendants. 

203. Beginning on or around August 2010, and continuing throughout Tamera Livingston’s 

tenancy, Defendants demanded that she pay them additional rent payments, or “side payments,” not set 

forth in her HAP Contract or subsidy adjustment notices. Defendants made these “side payment” 

demands to Tamera Livingston on a monthly basis, including demands that she pay extra rent for: 1) 

washer and dryer rentals, 2) renter’s insurance, and 3) covered parking charges. 

204. These demands for “side payments” are reflected in the Defendants’ Resident Ledger 

for the Livingston Residence. A true and accurate copy of the Resident Ledger is attached as 

Exhibit M. 
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205. Upon information and belief, a comparison of the relevant HAP Contract and subsidy 

adjustment notices with the Residential Ledger demonstrates that Defendants made demands for “side 

payments” from Tamera Livingston for each month that she lived at the Livingston Residence. 

206. Defendants demanded that Tamera Livingston make “side payments” in violation of the 

HAP Contract on at least 72 occasions. 

207. As a result, Defendants demanded and Tamera Livingston paid approximately $3,783.96 

in additional rent payments from August 2012 through the date on which the Fourth Amended 

Complaint was filed. In contrast, the amount of contract rent that Tamera Livingston was responsible 

for the entirety of this time period, as set forth in the HAP Contract and subsidy adjustment notices, 

was only $6,731.00. 

208. Defendants threatened to evict Tamera Livingston if she did not pay these additional 

rental amounts. 

209. Defendants ultimately filed an eviction action against Tamera Livingston for not making 

the unlawfully demanded “side payments.” 

210. Neither the Sacramento Housing Agency nor HUD authorized Defendants to charge or 

collect these additional rent payments. To the contrary, these demands for additional rent payments 

were barred by the HAP Contract, Tenancy Addendum, and applicable Section 8 rules and related 

regulations, as described above. 

211. Defendants never informed Tamera Livingston that the Section 8 rules, the HAP 

Contract, and Tenancy Addendum prohibited them from demanding these additional rent payments. 

212. Due to Defendants’ demands and threats of eviction, Tamera Livingston agreed to their 

demands for additional rent payments so that she would not lose her home and Section 8 voucher. 

213. Defendants’ additional charges to Tamera Livingston were also treated by Defendants 

as rent and were mandatory, pursuant to Defendants’ policies and procedures discussed in detail above. 

214. Plaintiff Tamera Livingston suffered emotional distress, physical injury, overpayment 

of rent, and out-of-pocket expenses as a result of the acts and omissions committed by Defendants. 
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CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

215. Named Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves and as representatives of all 

Class members, as defined above. 

216. This action has been brought and may be properly maintained as a class action because 

the proposed Class meets all applicable requirements of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23. 

217. Commonality: The named Plaintiffs and Class members are all former, current, or 

future tenants of Defendants at one or more of Defendants’ California properties, who in the relevant 

time period, have participated or will participate in the Section 8 program and receive rent subsidies 

from HUD subject to the protections of the Section 8 rules and related regulations described above. 

Class members therefore have been or are at risk of being unlawfully charged additional rent 

payments, or “side payments,” by Defendants, as described in more detail above, in excess of their 

individual portions of the contract rent, set forth in their HAP Contracts. Accordingly, the named 

Plaintiffs and Class members have suffered or will suffer a common injury. The named Plaintiffs and 

Class members all share common questions of law and fact which predominate over any question or 

issue solely affecting individual members. These common questions of law and fact include but are 

not limited to: 

i. Whether Defendants entered into HAP Contracts and Tenancy Addendums with 

Class members, and local public housing agencies in support of Class members; 

ii. Whether by entering into HAP Contracts and Tenancy Addendums, Defendants 

entered into residential lease agreements with Class members; 

iii. Whether HUD and the local public housingagencies made payments to 

Defendants for the Class members’ subsidized portions of the rent; 

iv. Whether Defendants are bound by the relevant Section 8 program statutes and 

regulations, 42 U.S.C. § 1437f and 24 C.F.R. Part 982; 

v. Whether the relevant Section 8 program statutes and regulations, 42 

vi. U.S.C. § 1437f and 24 C.F.R. Part 982, prohibit Defendants from demanding 

any additional rent payments, in excess of the Class members’ portions of the 

rent under the relevant HAP Contracts; 
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vii. Whether the relevant HAP Contracts prohibit Defendants from demanding any 

additional rent payments, in excess of the Class members’ portions of the rent 

under those HAP Contracts; 

viii. 

ix. 

Whether Defendants demanded and collected additional rent payments, or “side 

payments”—for instance, for washer and dryer rentals, renter’s insurance, and 

covered parking charges—from the Class members, in excess of the Class 

members’ portions of the rent under the relevant HAP Contracts; 

Whether Defendants’ demands for and collection of these additional rent 

x. 

payments from the Class members violate the relevant Section 8 program 

statutes and regulations, 42 U.S.C. § 1437f and 24 C.F.R. Part 982; 

Whether Defendants’ demands for and collection of these additional rent 

xi. 

payments from the Class members breach the relevant HAP Contracts and 

Tenancy Addendums; 

Whether Defendants’ demands for and collection of these additional rent 

xii. 

payments from the Class members breach Defendants’ residential lease 

agreements with Class members; 

Whether Defendants’ demands for and collection of these additional rent 

xiii. 

payments from the Class members violate the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. 

§§ 3729 et seq. 

Whether Defendants’ demands for and collection of these additional rent 

xiv. 

payments from the Class members violate California Business and Professions 

Code section 17200 et seq. 

The method of calculation and extent of damages for members of the Class. 

218. Typicality: The claims of the named Plaintiffs are typical of the claims of the Class 

members. The named Plaintiffs and all Class members are sustaining, have sustained, or are at risk of 

sustaining, injuries and/or damages arising out of and caused by the Defendants’ conduct as alleged in 

this Complaint. 
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219. Numerosity: A class action is the only available method for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy. Plaintiffs are informed and believe that Defendants own and manage, 

or at pertinent times have owned and managed, 69 apartment communities with 16,344 units across 

five western states: California, Utah, Arizona, Colorado, and Washington. Properties range in size 

from 40 units to 661 units. Upon information and belief, in four Sacramento properties alone, 

Defendants currently own and manage more than 150 units which are subsidized by HUD through the 

Section 8 program. Based on information produced from Defendants’ databases, there are 

approximately 2,500 Class Members. Membership can be determined based on Defendants’ tenant data 

showing housing assistance payments and additional service payments. 

220. Adequacy of Representation: The named Plaintiffs in this action are adequate 

representatives of the Class in that their claims are typical of those in the Class. They have been 

damaged as alleged herein and they are willing to go forward as representative in this class action 

litigation. Plaintiffs have no interests that are adverse to or conflict with those of the Class members. 

Plaintiffs are committed to the vigorous prosecution of this action. To that end, Plaintiffs have retained 

competent and experience counsel. 

221. This action is certifiable under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(3), because 

questions of law or fact common to the Class members, as described above, predominate over any 

questions affecting only individual members, and a class action is superior to other available methods 

for fairly and efficiently adjudicating the case. 

222. In addition, a class action is superior to the other available methods for fairly and 

efficiently adjudicating the case because the damages suffered by individual named Plaintiffs and 

Class members, while not inconsequential, are relatively small, and would be outweighed by the 

expense and burden of separate litigation by each individual. This fact is known by Defendants, and 

makes it impractical for Class members to seek redress individually for the wrongful conduct alleged 

herein. A class action is therefore the superior method of resolving this dispute and securing justice. In 

addition, judicial economy would be enhanced as a class action would avoid a multiplicity of lawsuits, 

undue hardship, and expense for both the Court and litigants. The prosecution of separate actions 

would also create a risk of inconsistent ruling; which might be dispositive of the interests of the other 
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Class members who are not parties to the adjudications and may substantially impede their ability to 

adequate protect their interests. 

223. Moreover, the class definition is ascertainable and lends itself to class certification 

because Defendants, as well as HUD and local public housing agencies, keep records of their Section 8 

tenants and rental payments. Defendants can therefore easily produce the records that would identify 

all Class members. 

224. In the alternative, this action is certifiable under the provisions of Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 23(b)(2), because Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to 

the Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief with 

respect to the Class and necessitating that any such relief be extended to Class members on a 

mandatory, class-wide basis. 

225. In addition, the court may certify the Class with respect to particular issues, as set forth 

in detail above, under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(c)(4). 

226. Plaintiffs are not aware of any difficulty which will be encountered in the management 

of this litigation which should preclude its maintenance as a class action. 

RELIEF AND CLAIMS 

227. As a direct and proximate result of the Defendants unlawful conduct, as set forth in this 

Complaint, named Plaintiffs and Class members have sustained damages and are entitled to relief, 

including but not limited to: 1) a return of all rents which were unlawfully obtained by the Defendants; 

2) statutory interest on such amounts according to proof; 3) additional statutory damages for each 

Plaintiff and Class member due to the acts and omission of the Defendants according to proof; 4) 

attorneys’ fees pursuant to contract and statute; 5) injunctive relief according to proof, including 

restoration of money wrongfully retained by Defendants, and interest thereon, and an injunction to 

prevent Defendants from continuing their illegal practices. 

228. In addition, this action will result in the enforcement of important rights affecting the 

public interest, including the right of the tenants of residential units to have their rent amounts 

determined in a lawful manner and free of harassment and intimidation. The successful conclusion of 

this litigation will confer a significant benefit on the general public and a large class of persons. 
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Plaintiffs and Class members are therefore entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to 

California Code of Civil Procedure section 1021.5. The necessity and financial burden of private 

enforcement are such as to make an award of fees under this statute appropriate. Such fees should not, 

in the interest of justice, be paid out of the recovery. 

229. Periodically, through their tenancies Defendants entered into residential rental 

agreements with Plaintiffs. True and correct copies of the residential rental agreements between 

Defendants and Plaintiff Terry are attached to the Complaint as Exhibit G, Exhibit H and Exhibit I. 

True and correct copies of the residential rental agreements between Defendants and Plaintiff Huskey 

are attached  as Exhibit J, Exhibit K. A true and correct copy of the residential rental agreement 

between Defendants and Plaintiff Livingston is attached  as Exhibit L. 

230. Wherefore named Plaintiffs and Class members pray for the damages stated below. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL FALSE CLAIMS 

ACT 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)
(All Plaintiffs v. Wasatch Advantage Group, LLC, Wasatch
Property Management, Inc., Wasatch Pool Holdings, LLC, 

Chesapeake Apartment Holdings, LLC, Logan Park Apartments, 
LLC, and Logan Park Apartments LP (“The FCA Defendants”)) 

231. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate into this cause of action the allegations of paragraphs 

1 through 230, as if the same were set out at length herein. 

232. The False Claims Act provides that any person who “knowingly presents a false or 

fraudulent claim for payment or approval” to the United States is liable on each such claim for a civil 

penalty of not less than $5,000 and not more than $10,000, plus three times the amount of damages 

sustained by the United States. In addition, any person who violates the Act is liable for the costs of the 

civil action brought to recover such penalty or damages. 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a). 

233. The False Claims Act defines the terms “knowing” and “knowingly” as meaning, with 

respect to information, that a person: “(i) has actual knowledge of the information; (ii) acts in deliberate 

ignorance of the truth or falsity of the information; or (iii) acts in reckless disregard of the truth or falsity 

of the information.” “[N]o proof of specific intent to defraud” is required. 31 U.S.C. § 3729(b)(l). 
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234. The False Claims Act defines a “claim” as “any request or demand ... for money or 

property ... that ... is made to a contractor, grantee, or other recipient, if the money or property is to be 

spent or used on the Government’s behalf or to advance a Government program or interest, and if the 

United Statements Government” either “provides or has provided any portion of the money or property 

requested or demanded” or “will reimburse such contractor, grantee or other recipient for any portion 

of the money or property which is requested or demanded.” 31 U.S.C. § 3729(b)(2). 

235. For each month that the FCA Defendants accepted “additional rent payments” from 

Plaintiffs, Defendants endorsed and presented for payment the housing assistance checks received 

from local public housing agencies. 

236. In their HAP Contracts with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 

FCA Defendants agreed that “During the HAP contract term, the rent to owner may at no time exceed 

the reasonable rent for the contract unit as most recently determined or redetermined by the PHA [local 

public housing agency] in accordance with HUD requirements.” (Exh. E at 9, para. 6(a).) 

237. FCA Defendants also certified to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development that “During the term of this contract . . . d. Except for the rent to owner, the owner has 

not received and will not receive any payment or other consideration (from the family, the PHA, HUD, 

or any other public or private source) for rental of the contract unit during the HAP contract term.” 

(Exh. A at 9-10, para. 8(d).) 

238. FCA Defendants further agreed that “e. The owner may not may not charge or accept, 

from the family or from any other source, any payment for rent of the unit in addition to the rent to 

owner. Rent to owner includes all housing services, maintenance, utilities and appliances to beprovided 

and paid bythe owner in accordance with the lease. f.Theowner must immediately return any excess rent 

payment to the tenant.” (Exh. A at 2, para. 5(e)-(f).) 

239. As of March 3, 2014, FCA Defendants knowingly endorsed and presented for payment 

65 separate housing assistance checks in relationship to the named Plaintiffs’ tenancies, totaling 

$44,125.67, while demanding and collecting from named Plaintiffs additional payments in violation of 

the relevant HAP Contracts, totaling $4,193.87. 
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240. Upon information and belief, FCA Defendants’ unlawful demands for and collection of 

additional rent payments are ongoing. 

241. Upon information and belief, FCA Defendants commit these violations as to all of their 

tenants who live at the Subject Properties and who receive rental subsidies from HUD and the Section 

8 program. 

242. The representations and agreements that FCA Defendants provided in their HAP 

Contracts (and all amendments or renewals thereof) each constitute a separate false claim or 

representation to the United States that FCA Defendants would not demand or receive consideration 

for the rented premises beyond the total contract rent amount, as set forth in the HAP Contracts. 

243. In addition, FCA Defendants’ endorsement and presentation for payment of each 

assistance check for each month, while knowingly receiving additional rent payments from Plaintiffs, 

constitutes a separate false claim or representation to the United States that FCA Defendants did not 

receive any other consideration for the rented premises for that month, as set forth in the HAP 

Contracts. 

244. The United States of America suffered damages as a result of violations of the False 

Claims Act, because the money which HUD disbursed to local public housing agencies for the 

payment of Section 8 housing assistance would not have been paid to the Defendants absent these false 

claims and fraudulent conduct. 

245. The United States of America sustained damages equal to all payments made to the 

Defendants pursuant to Plaintiffs’ Section 8 assistance program through November 30, 2022, for which 

FCA Defendants also unlawfully demanded and collected additional rent payments from named 

Plaintiffs, totaling $44,125.67 as of March 3, 2014. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 
BREACH OF CONTRACT 

CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE §§ 3300 ET SEQ.
(All Plaintiffs v. All Defendants) 

246. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate into this cause of action the allegations of paragraphs 

1 through 245, as if the same were set out at lengthherein. 

41 
SIXTH AMENDED COMPLAINT - CASE NO. 2:15-CV-00799 KJM-DB 

871535.10 

http:871535.10
http:44,125.67


 

 
      

 

           

 

   

            

  

  

  

 

   

 

  

  

  

   

   

 

 

  

 
 

  
 

             

  

              

 

           

               

       

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DB  Document 331  Filed 11/30/23  Page 44 of 217 

247. By signing the relevant HAP Contracts, Tenancy Addendums, and standard form rental 

agreements, Plaintiffs and Defendants entered into written residential rental agreements, through the 

use of standard form leases with the same material terms. 

248. These lease agreements were adhesion contracts not subject to any negotiations or input 

by Plaintiffs. 

249. Defendants were obligated to comply with the material terms of these agreements. Due 

to Defendants’ breach, Plaintiffs performed or were excused from performing their obligations under 

the contracts. 

250. Defendants breached the terms of said agreements on multiple occasions by charging 

Plaintiffs additional rental payments in violation of their HAP Contracts, including Section 5(e) of Part 

C of the Tenancy Addendum to the HAP Contracts which provides: “The owner may not charge or 

accept, from the family or from any other source, any payment for rent of the unit in addition to the 

rent to owner. Rent to owner includes all housing services, maintenance, utilities and appliances to be 

provided and paid by the owner in accordance with the lease.” 

251. As a result of Defendants’ conduct, Plaintiffs suffered damages including overpayment 

of rent (through November 30, 2022), out of pocket expenses, physical and mental discomfort, and 

other damages to be ascertained at trial. 

252. Wherefore Plaintiffs pray for the damages stated below. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
CONSUMERS LEGAL REMEDIES ACT 

CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE § 1750
(All Plaintiffs v. All Defendants) 

253. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate into this cause of action the allegations of paragraphs 

1 through 252, as if the same were set out at lengthherein. 

254. This cause of action is brought pursuant to the Consumers Legal Remedies Act 

California Civil Code section 1750 (“CLRA”). 

255. TheCLRAhasadoptedacomprehensivestatutoryschemeprohibitingvarious deceptive 

practices inconnection with theconductofabusinessprovidinggoods, propertyor services to consumers 

primarily for personal, family, or household purposes. 
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256. Each of the Defendants is a “person” as defined by Civil Code section 1761(c) because 

each is a corporation. 

257. Plaintiffs and Class members are “consumers” within the meaning of Civil Code section 

1761(d) because they are individuals who leased rental property from Defendants for personal or 

household use. 

258. Defendants’ leasing of rental property is a “service” within the meaning of California 

Civil Code section 1761(b). 

259. Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ payments for the services of Defendants are 

“transactions” as defined by Civil Code section 1761(e), because Defendants entered into agreements 

to provide those services in exchange for Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ monetary compensation. 

260. Plaintiffs have standing to pursue this claim as they have suffered injury in fact and 

have lost money as a result of Defendants’ actions as set forth herein. 

261. Plaintiffs and Class members reviewed, believed, and relied upon the statements made 

by Defendants, including omissions of fact, that Defendants were lawfully entitled to demand and 

collect additional rental amounts, or “side payments,” in excess of the tenants’ portions of the rent 

provided in the relevant HAP Contracts. These statements and omissions include (1) Defendants’ 

affirmative misrepresentations that they would not collect amounts beyond the contract rent permitted 

for Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ respective Section 8 apartments, as set forth in the HAP Contracts 

including Section 5(e) of Part C of the Tenancy Addendums to the Terry and Huskey III HAP 

Contracts, (2) Defendants’ omission to explain in the course of collecting “side payments” from 

Plaintiffs and Class members that such payments constitute a violation of the Section 8 program. 

262. Defendants’ misrepresentations and concealment were made with knowledge of their 

likely effect on tenants, as members of the general public, and were done to induce Plaintiffs and Class 

members to enter into their Section 8 HAP Contracts and to pay additional rental amounts, or “side 

payments,” in excess of the tenants’ portion of the rent as provided in the relevant HAP Contracts. 

Plaintiffs reviewed the provisions identified above and justifiably relied on Defendants’ 

misrepresentations when entering into their Section 8 HAP Contracts and paying these excess rental 

amounts. Further, when Plaintiffs paid the “side payments” requested by Defendants, they relied on 
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Defendants’ omission to explain that such “side payments” are prohibited by applicable Section 8 rules 

and regulations, and their HAP Contracts. 

263. As set forth above, Defendants violated and continue to violate the CLRA by engaging 

in practices proscribed by California Civil Code section l 770(a)(2) in transactions with Plaintiffs and 

Class members, by misrepresenting their approval to demand and collect additional rental amounts, or 

“side payments,” by HUD and local public housing agencies. 

264. Plaintiffs seek an order enjoining the act and practices described above, restitution of 

property, and any other injunctive or equitable relief that the Court deems proper. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES 

CALIFORNIA BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS CODE §§ 17200 ET SEQ.
(All Plaintiffs v. All Defendants) 

265. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate into this cause of action the allegations of 

paragraphs 1 through 264, as if the same were set out at length herein. 

266. California Business and Professions Code section 17200 prohibits acts of “unfair 

competition,” including any “unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business act or practice.” 

267. Defendants have engaged in unfair, unlawful, and fraudulent business acts or practices 

as described in this Complaint, including, but not limited to, unlawfully demanding and collecting 

additional rental amounts, or “side payments,” in excess of Plaintiffs’ portions of the rent under the 

relevant HAP Contracts. 

268. As discussed in more detail above, Defendants’ policy of demanding and collecting 

these additional side payments is unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent in that it violates the relevant 

HAP Contracts and at least the following laws: 

i. Section 8 program statutes and regulations, 42 U.S.C. § 1437f and 24 C.F.R. 

Part 982; 

ii. False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 et seq.; 

iii. California Civil Code section 1750; 

iv. California Civil Code Section3300. 
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269. Defendants’ practices, as set forth herein, also constitute “unfair” business acts and 

practices within the meaning of California Business and Professions Code section 17200, because (1) 

their conduct offended public policy, including the public polices furthered by the Section 8 program 

for the benefit of low-income tenants, (2) was unethical and unscrupulous, and (3) any alleged benefits 

from Defendants’ conduct are outweighed by the injuries caused to Plaintiffs, Class members, and the 

general public. 

270. There were reasonable alternatives available to Defendants to further Defendants’ 

legitimate business interests, other than the conduct described herein. 

271. California Business and Professions Code section 17200 also prohibits any “fraudulent 

business act or practice.” 

272. Defendants’ material misrepresentations, and concealment and omission of material 

facts, as set forth above, were false, misleading, and/or likely to deceive the public within the meaning 

of California Business and Professions Code section 17200. These “fraudulent” acts include (1) 

Defendants’ affirmative misrepresentations that they would not collect amounts beyond the contract 

rent permitted for Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ respective Section 8 apartments, as set forth in the 

HAP Contracts including Section 5(e) of Part C of the Tenancy Addendums to the Terry and Huskey 

III HAP Contracts, (2) Defendants’ omission to explain in the course of collecting “side payments” 

from Plaintiffs and Class members that such payments constitute a violation of the Section 8 program. 

273. Defendants’ misrepresentations and concealment were made with knowledge of their 

likely effect on tenants, as members of the general public, and were done to induce Plaintiffs and Class 

members to enter into their Section 8 HAP Contracts and to pay additional rental amounts, or “side 

payments,” in excess of the tenants’ portion of the rent as provided in the relevant HAP Contracts. 

Plaintiffs reviewed the provisions identified above and justifiably relied on Defendants’ 

misrepresentations when entering into their Section 8 HAP Contracts and paying these excess rental 

amounts. Further, when Plaintiffs paid the “side payments” requested by Defendants, they relied on 

Defendants’ omission to explain that such “side payments” are prohibited by applicable Section 8 rules 

and regulations, and their HAP Contracts. 
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274. To this day, Defendants continue to violate the Unfair Business Practices Act by 

continuing to demand and collect additional rental amounts, or “side payments,” in excess of the 

tenants’ portion of the rent as provided in the relevant HAP Contracts. 

275. As a direct and proximate cause of Defendants’ violation of the Unfair Business 

Practices Act, Plaintiffs and Class members have suffered injury in fact and actual damages. 

276. As a proximate result of Defendants’ violation of the California Business and 

Professions Code section 17200, Defendants have been unjustly enriched and should be required to 

make restitution to Plaintiffs and Class members or disgorge their ill-gotten profits through November 

30, 2022 pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 17203. 

277. Defendants’ conduct, as described above, violates California Business and Professions 

Code section 17200 and entitles Plaintiffs and Class members to restitution and injunctive relief. 

278. In addition, pursuant to California Business and Professions Code section 17203, 

Plaintiffs, both individually and on behalf of the Class, seek an order of this Court requiring 

Defendants to immediately cease such acts of unfair competition and enjoining Defendants from 

continuing to conduct business via the unlawful, fraudulent or unfair business acts and practices 

complained of herein and from failing to fully disclose the true nature of their misrepresentations. 

279. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, further request 

injunctive relief in the form of restitution and disgorgement and all other relief allowed under section 

17200, plus interest, attorneys’ fees, and costs pursuant to, inter alia, California Code of Civil 

Procedure section 1021.5. 

REQUEST FOR JURY TRIAL 

280. Plaintiffs request a trial by jury of all issues which may be tried by a jury pursuant to 

Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

281. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and the Class, and the United States of America 

respectfully request that the Court order the following relief: 

i. Certify the Class and appoint Plaintiffs as representatives of the Class. 

ii. Certify the undersigned counsel as Class Counsel. 
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iii. Declare that Defendants’ policy of demanding and/or collecting from their 

Section 8 tenants additional rent payments, in excess of the tenants’ portion of 

the contract rent in the relevant HAP Contracts, is unlawful. 

iv. Require Defendants, at their own cost, to notify all Class members of the alleged 

violations discussed herein. 

v. Enjoin Defendants from continuing to demand or collect from Injunctive Relief 

Class Members any rent payments in excess of the tenants’ portion of the 

contract rent in the relevant HAP Contracts. 

vi. Enjoin Defendants also from any attempts to evict Injunctive Relief Class 

Members based on any alleged failure to pay any of these unlawful demands for 

additional rent. 

vii. Find that Defendants violated the False Claims Act and are liable to the United 

States of America. 

viii. Assess a civil penalty against Defendants for each separate violation of the False 

Claims Act, in an amount of not less than $5,000 or more than $10,000. 

ix. Award the United States three times the amount of damages that it sustained as a 

result of the Defendants’ acts. 

x. Award Plaintiffs the qui tam Plaintiffs’ share of the proceeds. 

xi. Award Plaintiff United States of America and qui tam Plaintiffs costs and 

reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to contract, the False Claims Act, the 

Consumer Legal Remedies Act, and Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1021.5. 

xii. Order Defendants to cease and desist from violating the False Claims Act. 

xiii. Find that Defendants, by breaching the relevant HAP Contracts and Tenancy 

Addendums, breached their residential lease agreements with Plaintiffs and Class 

members. 

xiv. Find that Defendants violated the California Consumers Legal Remedies Act. 

xv. Find that Defendants violated the California Unfair Business Practices Act. 

xvi. Award treble damages according to proof for each cause of action. 
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xvii. Award general damages according to proof for each cause of action. 

xviii. Award compensatory damages for losses resulting from humiliation, mental 

anguish, and emotional distress according to proof. 

xix. Award incidental expenses, past, present and future. 

xx. Award interest on the amount of losses incurred at the prevailing legal rate. 

xxi. Award statutory penalties. 

xxii. Award such other and further relief which this Court deems just and proper. 

Dated: November 30, 2023 Respectfully submitted, 

GOLDSTEIN, BORGEN, DARDARIAN & HO 

/s/ Anne P. Bellows 
Anne P. Bellows 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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EXHIBIT A 



From:SHRA Exec. A 1. 916 443 8872 09/241201··· :53 #587 P.002/0iJ 
Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DA~EALED* Document 1 Filed 04/ 5 Page 30 of 82 · 

(Paga ~ of 76} 

;··. 

SACRAMENTO HOU!iilNG & REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM 

Laue Supplemental Agreement 
TJlls Is a lease Supplemental Agreement tllllll la a legal a>ntract betMleJ1 the owner and ll'le Tenant In regetds ID lease 
of lhe property. H sl!ould be ca,sfully read by bolh parties beft,ra signing. This Lease SUpplemen!al Agreemen~ fCgelhel' 
with the HUO-preiClf!Jed tenanr:I' addendum. will be part of the HA-approved lees& fOnn provided by Ille Owner, I any1 · · 

and collemlvefy Will be lhe Lease between Owner and Tenant In Ille svent at a ainflicll llelWesn lhe 11111119 and 11011c11110ns 
set out In the documents comprllllng Ille \.eGBe, thiu. Lease Suppl,naotalAgreement shall supersede any i;onftlding 
pr<Wfslons . 

1. PARTIES TO THE AGREEMSNT DEFINED: 

As used in this lease, Ille terms 'Oll'net and 'Tenant' refer ID the following: 

a. Tenant DENOIA TeRRY Tenant tJ fll00847% 

b, Owner Vendor# 

2, PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO RESIDE IN THE UNIT: 

Dl!NIKA G. T&RRY MIKIYAN C. I.AMBERT 
IIIKOLE SERIYAH. JENKINS 

3. UNIT ADDRESS: 360D DATA DR 391 
RANCHO (:ORDOVA, CA 1&870 

4. INITIAL LEASE TEAM: Beg1nS 912111Zo10 1!111d ends 81311Z011 

5. INITIAL COITTRACT RENT: $8611.00 INITIAL Tl:NANT RENT: SO.DD 
Aflar lhe lnllial cn&-year Leese tsrm. tile Lease shall autamatJcally renew as a mcnlh-la-manth tenanq,.unle$8 the Lease. 
Is tennlnated by Iha Owner, !he ,enan~ or Ille Housing Authority for causa In seccnlanee wfth !he proy/slcns of th& I.ease 
error c:anvenienae. Under Clllifofflia raw, Owner muat prav!de Tenant with 90 days prier notice of l.aasa IBITlllnallon ror 
convenience notwlthetandlng the month-lo manth lease IIBrm. 

Tha owner shall provide or pay tot lhe utmlles and appliances lndiilated belOW Dy "Ovmar", The tenant "1all provide ar pay 
lot' Illa udllt!es or appllallQllS lndlc;sled below by "Tenant". Untess Olhetwisa specified below, lhe cwner snafl pay lon1ll 
utlllUea a~ appliances ~eel llY ll'le OWl18(. 

Paid bf 

Tenant .......,.- -- Tenant 
Tmsll- -Tonul 

ID-]'! ~~.lJlO-
Number · 

-
• Date. I 

ID I 11 a,IO 
Telepncme Number Date 

---- Page 1 oft 
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From:SHRA Exec. A 1 916 443 8872 
Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DA~EALED* Document 1 

09/24/201A,'i:53 #587 P,003/013 

Housing Assistance Paymen1S Contract 
{HAP Contract} 
Section 8 Tenant-Sued Assistance 
Housing Choice Voucher Program 

l'l!rt A of Ille HAP Contract: COlltract.lnfonaatioa 
(To propmi: tho CODl!ICI, fill out all cunlllld iommudlon hi Put A.) 
t. COll1mlS of Coatract _ 

'111111 IIAP caa1ractllas llmcpans: 
Put A: Cnal!1ct lnform'1ian 
PeltB: Body of Con!nst 
hit C: T .... cy MdcndlllD. 

l, Tooalll 

DENIKAlERRY 

:I. Ca...,...l/lllt 

3li000ATADR391 
RAl"OlO CX>RDOVA. CA ~70 

4 Household 

Filed 04/:al'5 Page 31 of-82 

U.S. Department of -9 
;md u""'" Dovelopment 
om.,, o(l'ubllc and lncllon llouoi•S 

OMS Appn,wl No. 2'77-0169 
(azp. 09/l0/2012). 

The fbllowtng - may midc In the unlL 0tlicr P""""' may nDI •• addod to 1lio """"'11old l>fthoal prior wrlucn ;rppmval of 
the owner and Ille PHA. 

DllNIKA O Tl!RllY 
MOOYANCLM4BEltT 
MIKOLB Sl!RIYAH JENKTNS 

S, lnldal La5o Tann 
The: Initial lease tero1 1>egins •• (mm/dotm>-): waMGJO 
TIie Initial Jca,o tmn end, on (mm/ddl)'m,); O!l/31aall 

'- , ...... --o..n ... 
Tho laltlal n:nl lo - ls: $860 
Omtng tll• lnillll lomic bm, u.: owaa- may not !l!lso tbo IODI IO owner. 

7. Initial Bamlog ""'-.. 1',ymmt 
Tho HAP..-., 1111m ..,,.,..,_ ..o tho flm day ofth, lm~at I..,....,.,_ At the bcgiDftlng of Ill< IIAP -lnrcl 11:nn, tho amonlM 
of the homlns mlstsm:c JlllJ'll!l'III b)' tl1o J'IIA to tho •-ls 5860 per in<mth, · 

lbeamownoflhc ffllllllhly houslr,g """"'8ll<OPlll'l"onl by Ille PHA lo 1h5 awocr is sobjcd to change darmg Ill• HAP''""'""'""" 
in-wilb RUD n:qulnmmtL 

--· .. ·- Pall" 2 of 12 
i&m tiJo-&1 (8iiiios1 

ref Hllndbock 74311JI 
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From :SHRA Exec A 1 916 443 8872 
Case 2:1~-cv-00799-KJM-DAW'sEALED* Document 1 

09/24/2�-:54 .· #.587 P.004/013 
Filed 04,W't5 Pa1;1e 32 of 82 

CFa.ge . 3 of 7'6) 
, . 

&. Udlilla •ad Appliaaca 

,,,. ... ,...,.p,,,!A.,l'll''°'"',.t;t;a"".,.,."""'1'4ioalri_.,,."O".n,-""UJl""fdoorl"Yfot<l,;""111i<sor.,.u.m.c,­
blihr•·bJ • "1"', Ualmimllarala~ ~ me, ;:tlPIAR' rlwl ,.,1ora1& 111ilar1:111111tht11,rJ~ pRMdCd bftt., lllffllr-

Pro\'l,Wll} 
Item · owner .Tci:nant 

--Oll/llloolrlc T 

CoOl<ml 00/El=ric T 
Qdml!l=!,io .T 
fJr Condl~oaillg T 

W-lbl•"811m>JC.. T - t - T 

Tool,~ T 

FIIII 1'co El°""' T 

Slgnaflln:5 
Pllblh: Roml1e, Ageney: Sacraraeato ffoU1lag I\Ulb•rilJ 

~«A m .. a/4 Mu.r-,,Ati 
PriotorTl'I"! BA 

Page3of12 

pi .,,6,, 

8 ~-' 
.. .... . I .... 
~ c,I .:), 
Cl .-: t., 
1' g ~ 
. -~'13r.13U ... .._ _____ 

Print or T)'!,c N..., ud TI~, of Slgnu!olJI 

.~"D 
Oote( 

3600 DATA DR• OFFICE 

RANCHO COIUX>VA, CA 95670 

-(B,,_CI. CIIY, Blatc, Zlp} 

/o,m HUD-52841 (8i2coliJ 
rGI Handbook 7420.B 
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From.:SHRA Exec A 1 916 443 8872 
· Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DA~EALED* Document 1 

0~/24/20.:54 . #587 P.005/013 

Housing Assistance Payment- ,.;ontract 
(HAP Contract) 
Section 8 Tenant-Based Assistance 
Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Part B of HAP Contract: &dy of Conmn,t 

I. Purpose 
a: This is.a HAP contract between 1he PHA and the owner. 

The HAP contract is cim:red to provide assistanco for tho 
family under the Section 8 voucher program (see HUD 
program te!!ulalions at 24 Code of Federal Regulations Part 
982). 

b, The HAP conlract only applies ID the household and 
C011011<;1 unit specified in Part A of the HAP COD1tact. 

e. During the HAP contra<! term, the PflA will pay boosing 
assistance payments to the owner Jn accoroance wi1h tho 
HAP contract. 

d. The fillm1y will .emde in the contract uni! wilh assistance 
under tho Section 8 voucher program. The housing 
a"Sisrance payments by the PHA assist 1he tenant ID lease 
the conl[a,;t unit from tho owner fur occupancy by the 
fllrmly. 

2. Lease of Contract Unit 

a. The owner has leased the contr!ld llDit ID the tenem fur 
occupancy by 1he family with assistaru:e UDder the Section 
8 ,oucber program. 

b. The PHA bas approved leasing of the unit in acconlance 
wilh requirements of the Seetion 8 voucher prognun. 

c. The lease for tho contract nnit IDll9t includewonl- lbr-wcrd 
all pl'O\'isions of the tenancy addendum '"'IUirod by HUD 
(Part C of the HAP contract). 

d. The owner oerti:lies !bat: 

(I) The owner and the tr:nanl havo ent=cd into a lease of 
the COlllraet unit that lnclvdes all pro\islons af the 
teuancy addendum. 
(2) The leas: is in a- form that is nsed in the 
locality by the owner and tbet is generally used fur other 
unassisted 1enants in tbe J)l<lllises. 
(3) The lease is conslstent with Stare and locsl law. 

c. The owner is rr:spom;s1>1e for screening the fimrlly's 
behavior or suilabilily:lilrtemmcy. The PHA is not 
n,sponsiblo fur ,uch screemng. The PHA has no liability or 
nosponsibllity to tho owner or other persons for the family's 
behavior or tho filmil)"s conduct in tenancy. 

3. Maintenance, Utilities, and Other Senrk:es 

a. The ov.ner UNSt m&Jntain the contract unit and premises in 
BC<Ordanoe wilh tho housing quallty Sbmdanls (HQS). 

b. The owne,- nmst provide all utilities needed ID comply with 
theHQS, 

c. lftbc owner does not llllllntain the contract unit in 
ea:ordance with the HQS, or lalls to provide all utilities 
needed ID comply with the HQS, tho PHA may exercise any 
available remedies. PHA remedies for suoll breach 
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Include recovery of overpa)'lllents. suspension of hooslng 
assistance pa)'IIIODls. abatanellt or other reduction of housing 
assls!ance payments, tmninatiOD ofhousingassistauce 
paymems, end tenninatiiln of.the HAP eont?act. Tho PHA may 
not exorcise such ranedies agamst tho owner because of an HQS . 
breach for which the limrily Is respornn'ble, and tbet is - eansed 
by the O\\tll:I'. 

d. The PHA sball not mak!o any housing assistance paym,,nts if tho 
contract unit does not meet the HQS, unless the owner corrects 
the defect within the period speciJied by the PHA and 1he PHA 
verifies the correction. If a defect Is life tlm:atening, 1be owner 
must comet the defect within no more than 24 hours. For otbor 
def cots. the owner must amect the ddi:ct within the period 
specified by the PHA. . 

e. The PHAmay inspect the contmcl unit and premises at such 
times as 1he PHA detennines necessa,y. to ensure that lhe unit Is 
in ,a:ordance wilh the HQS. 

f. The PHAmustnotify the owner of any HQS defi:cts shown by 
tho inspection. 

g. The owna must provide all housing services as agreed ID in tho 
lease. 

4. Torm of HAP Contract 

a. Reladen tD lease term. The teml oftbo HAP contmcl begins on 
the fim dey af1he initilll tmn aftbo lease, ·and -Illes on tho 
last dey af the temi of the lease (including tho initial ·leasi,.1cmJ 
and any OX!l:nsions). 

b. When HAP conlrad termlaates. 

(I) Tho HAP contrru:t tenninates ,.,toma1icaJly.iftbe lease ls 
termina!Ed by the owner or tho tenant 

(2) The PHAmay tenninatc pn,giam assistance for the family· 
for any gn,undsauiboriz:d in llO<:Otdance wilhHUD 
requiremcms. If the PHA -program asslstanco fur 
tho family, tho HAP contract terminales automallco!ly. 

(J) If the mrm1y mows from tho contracl unit; the HAP 
conll'IICI tenninllles automalically. 

(4) The HAP contra<t ll:nilinates autnmstically 180 calendar 
days afu:r the Jasthousi,,g BSSlshmee paymenti,, the owner. 

(5) Tho PHA may terminate the HAP COllliact If the PHA . 
detmblnes, in acoordance with HUD requirements, that 
llllllilable program Jimding is not sufficlait ID support 
coolinuod assistance for families in the program. 

(6) The HAP contract tenninates aulDmlllicaliy upon tho dealh 
of a single member household, includlng single in~ 
households wuh • Jive..Jn.oidc. . 

lcnn H0™1 (8'2!l091 
ref Handllook 7420.8 
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(7} The PHAmay"""1ina1otheHAP colttra<:I if tho PHA 
ddermines 1het the contract unit does not provide 
adequate space in accordance with the HQS because af 
"" i.m:n:asc in finDily size or a tbange In tiunily 
composition. 

(8) If the fanrlly breaks up, thePHA may tuminate lhe 
. HAP contract, or may continue houslug assistance 

peyments on bebalf af lamily members who remain in 
the contract unit. 

(9) The l'HA may \enlJinan, the HAP •-ifihe PHA 
ch:tennines that the unit does not meet an requirements 
·oftbe HQS. or determines that the owna-bas odlerwise 
breached the HAP contmc1. . 

S. Pnmslon and Payment for Utilities and Appliances 
a. The lease must specify what utilities aro to be provided or 

paid by lheowncror1he tenant. 
b. The lease must specify what appliances are to be provided 

or paid by lho owner or the tenant. 
c. Part A of the HAP oontnlct specific, what utilities and 

appliances are to be provided or paid by the ownerorthe 
11:nant. The lease shall ho CODSistl:nt with lhe HAP oontract. 

6. Rent to Owner: Reasonable Rent 
a. During lhe HAP ooutract term, the rent to OWJll:T may at no 

time exceed the n:aoonable rent fur lhe contract UDil as 
most recently detmnined or re-detenniaed by tbe PHA in 
aa:ordaoco with HUD requiremon1s. 

b. The PHA must do!muine whelhor lhe ,_ to owner is 
reasonable In comparison to nmt for other comparable 
noassisted unlts, To mata, this determination, the PHA 
must c:ou.,ldcr. 

(I) The location, quality, size, uuit type, and age of the 
con1-tunit;mid 

(2) Any ameoitics, housing services, rnaiotoJBD<'e end 
utilities provided and paid by the owner. 

c. The PHA must re-determine the reBSOJIBble reat when 
required in acc:onlanoc with HllD roquiremeots. The PHA 
may n:-det"'1ninc the "'"""'""'"' rent at any time. d. During the HAP CODtract term, the rent to owner may not 
eoca:ed n:Dt cbmged by the own.r for comparable 
UD8SSisled units In the premlses. The owner must give the 
PHA any information requested by the PHA on rents 
charged by the OffllCI' for other un:lts in the premises or 
cisewherc. 

7. PHAPaymenttoOwner 
a. WIien paid 

(1) During the tem, ofthi: HAP contracr. the PHA must 
make monthly housi!lg assislrmce pa)'JDOllls to the owna­
on bcbolf of the family at the beginning of eoch month. 

(2) The PHA must pay hwsing assistance payments 
promptly wh<n clnc to tho owner. 

(3) Ifbl>ush,g •ssi- Jl9YrDO"IS are not paid promptly 
when due after tho i!r.,t two caleDdar IDODtbs afthe HAP 
C011lract term, the PHA shall P8Y lhe owner penalties if 
.U of the following cln:umstances apply: (i) Such 
penalties are in aa:orclance with geaorally occcpted 
proctices and law, aa applicobie In tho local housing 
mmker, governing p"181ties fur late payment of rent by a 
n:nant; (ii) It is the ownei's practice to charge 
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such penalties for assisted and unassistc4 -; .and ('w.') 
The ownez- also charges such penalties agsmst the tenant 
for late J!IIYlJlCDt afl!unily rent to owner. However, the 
PHA shall not he obligated to pay any lat,: payment penalty 
if HUD determines that late payment by . .the PHA is due to 
lilctolS beyond the PHA's COllll'OL Morecver, the PHA shall 
not ho obligated to pay any late payment penalfy if housing 
as,istancc payments 'oythc PHA = delayed or denied as a 
renu:dy.Jor Offller breach. of the HAP con1r11<1 (including 
any of the fullowing PHA remedies: recovery af 
overpayments, suspension ofliousi!lg asmslance payments;. 
llhstemeDt or rednol!DD of housing assistmceJ>8Y-Dl"DIS, . 
tcnnination ofboosiog assistance P8J1IM'l1lS and ~Oil 
ofthcamtract~ 

(4) Housing assis1aru:o payments shall only be paid to the 
owner while the family is residing In the con1111et mdt · 
dming the tonn aftbc HAP c:cn1mct. The PHA shall IIOt 
pay a housing assisbmco payment to the owner fur any 
month slier the month when the liumly moves out. 

b. Owner compliance with HAP cootract. Unless the owner bas 
compiled with all pro.;s!ons oftbe HAP contract, the owner 
does not have a right to receive housing assistance paymeots 
under the HAP contra<t:. 

c. Amount of PHA payment to owner 
(I) The amount aftbc """11hcy- PHA housing.­

payment to the owoer shall be detennined by tbe.PHAin 
"""'1Mlll1CO with HUD Rquiremcnts fur a""'8ney lllldc:r tbe 
roucher program. . . . . 

(2) The amount of the PHAbonsing asslst,mco payment is· 
subject to change during the HAP amtract term In . 
accordance with HllD requirmnems.·The PHA must 001ify 
thc fBmily and the owner of any changes in tbc'"11011Dt af 
the housing asmstan<e_...i. 

(J) The housing assistance~ fur the fil1il mou1h of the 
HAP con1n!<:111:rm shsJJ be pro-rated fbr a portlal mmdh. 

d. Application ofpll)'Dlent. The monthly housing assistaocc 
p~ shall he credited against tho monthly· rent to ownor for 
thc contrallt unit. . 

e. Limit of PHA responslbilhy. 
(1) The PHA ls ooly responslble for maklllg housing assistmce 

Pll)'DIODU to the owner in acc<mlaoco with 1'>• HAP 
contract and HllD requirements fur a !ODilllC)' under the 
voucher program. 

(2) The PHA sball not pay any portion af the R:nl to owner In 
excess of the housing assistance~ The PHA shall 
DOt pay any other dmm by the owna- against the filmily. 

£ Overpayment to ol'lllar, If the PHA de!ermincs 1bat tbc owm:r 
is DOI entitled to th£ housing assistance payment or any pelt af 
it, tho PHA, in addition to Oilier remedies, may deduct the 
amount af the ampaylllC'Dt from any omounts due the owner 
fmcludiug amounts due under any other Section 8 assist11nce 
COIIIJact), 

8. Owner Certification 
During the tonn of this conum:t. tho owna- certifies that: 

a. The owner is maintaining 1he contract unit and premises in 
accordance with lhe HQS, 

ref Handbook .7420.B 
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b. Toe contract unit is loased to the b:t.-c The lease includes 
the tcDancy addendum (Pert C of the HAP contract), and is 
in aocordancc with the HAP COIIIIlla and program 
requirements. The owner bas p<O\'ided the lease ID the 
PHA, inclllding any misions of the lease. 

c. The,= to oww:r docs not exceed R>Jts charged by the 
owoor fur rental of comparable unassisted units in 1he 
pn:m!.,es. 

d. Bxcq,t for the rent to owner, the owner has DOI rccdved 
and Will not receive any payments or other consideration 
(mxn the :lilmily, the PHA. HUD, er any other public or 
privam source) for rental oftbe coatnu:t unit durlDg the 
HAP contract tenn. 

e, The fmuily docs not own or have any interest In the 
c:ontract unit. 

f. To the best of the owner's knowledge, the member.I oftbe 
family reside in the CUlltracl lllllt, and the unit is the 
limlil)"s only residence. · 

g. The owne, (including a principel or other ink:rested party) 
ia not Ibo perem, child, grandparent, grandchild, sister, or 
brother of any member of the fiDnily, unless the PHA has 
determined (and bas notified the owner and the :lilmily of 
sw:h ~atioo) that approving rcotal oflbc uni~ 
ootwllbstanding such relalloosbip, would provide 
reasonai>I• aocommodatio't for a family lllClllbcr who ia a 
person with disabilities. 

Prohibition of Discrimination, In aca,ntana, with 
applicablG equal opportunity statutes, Exocut!ve Onler.,, and 
regulations: 

a. The owncrlllllSlnot mscriminate against any person 
becaose of race, color, mlgioo, sex, national origin, age, 
illllrlllal Slll!Ds, or dlsabilityi,, ron.....,n "litb the HAP 
contract. 

b. The owner lllllSI cooperate with the PHA and HUD in 
cooductmg equal opportunity complimu:e reviews aod 
complaint Investigations 1n eonncction wjth the HAP 
coolnlet. 

10. Owner's Breach ofHAP Contract 
a. Any of the folJow1ng at:tions bytbe OWDeT (including a 

principal or otherlntacsted party) is a brcaoh of the HAP 
contract by the owner: 

{l) If the owner has viols!i:d any obligation undertbe 
HAP contract, Including the owner's obligation to 
maiDtam the unit in accordance with the HQS. 

(2) Jfthc owner has vlolllled aoy obligation under aoy 
other housing assistance payments contract oodcr 
SectlonB. 

(3) If the owner has committed fraud, bribery or aoy other 
comq,t or criminal act in coonection with any Federal 
housing assiidDnce program. 

{4) For projects with mortgages insured by RUD or loans 
made by HUD, if the owner bas failed ro comply with 
the regulations for Ibo applicable mortgage insurance 
or loan program, with the mortgage or mortgage oote, 
or with the n:gulatmi, .g,:eement; ur if the owot:r has 
commiaed fre1ld, bribery or any otha corropt or 
criminal aot in cooncctioo with the mmtgagc or loan. 
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(S) If the ow.... has engaged 1n any drug-related crimlnal 
activity or any violent criminal activity. 

b. If the PHA detertoines that a breacb has occurred, the PHA may 
exercise any of its right,; and remedies under the HAP cootmot; 
or any other available rigl,1, aod n:medies. for such breach. The 
PHA shall notify the owocr of s1ldt "-mmalion, including·a 
brief statement of the reasons for the determinalion..Toc notice 
by the PHA to the owner may rcqo!re the owner to take 
oom:<:tive actioo, as vcimed or delermined by tho PJ,A, by a 
deadline prescnoed 1n the notice. 

c. The PHA's rigbls and remedies fur owocr lm:ach of 1he HAP 
cootract include recovery of ovcpa)'Jl!Cllts,. sospeosioo !lf 
housing assistance paymeots, aiian:ment or other reduction· of 
housing assistance paymODts, ten:olnation of housing IISSistalice 
paymeots, and 11:lmiDatiDo of the HAP cootrilct. 

d. The PHA may seek aod obtun additional roliefby judiclel order 
or aot!oo, Including spccim, pe,:fom,anco, other injunctive relief 
or order li>r damages. · 

c. Even iftbe :lilmily continues to live in the contract uoit, the PHA 
may exercise aoy rigl1ls and n:medies for owner breach of the 
HAP coutract. 

f. Toe PHA's exercise or non-exacise of any right or remedy for 
owner bread, oftbc HAP contraot is not a waiver of the right to 
exorcise that or any other right or remedy at auy tlmc. 

11. PHA and HUD Access to Premises and Owner's Records 

a. The owner must provide aoy infommtkm pc:rtineDt ro the HliP. 
contract that the PHA or RUD may rearooably n:quin:; · 

b. The PHA, HUD and the Comptroller General of the United 
States shall have full and free access to the oontract unit and the 
premises, and to all aa:oimb and other recmds of the owocr lhal 
ore n:levant to the HAP contract, includinglhc right to examine 
or audit the records and to make c,,ples. 

c. The OW!lCr musl grant soch access to computorm:d or other 
eiedronic records, and ro a,ry computers. cquipmco! or fildlities 
COD1DiDing sw:h records, and must provide any inmrmalion or 
essistan~ needed to access the rc:conls. 

12. Exclusion of Third Par1y Rigb1s 

a. The mmlly Is oot a party ro or third party bcocficiary of Part B 
of tho HAP COlllr.lCt. Toe family may not coforce any provision 
of Part B, and may Bot exercise any right or remedy against the· 
owner or PHA under Pert B. · · 

b. Toe tcnent or the PHA may enfilrce the tenanq addendom (Part 
C of the HAP contract) against the owoa, mid may exercise any 
right or remedy against the owm:r under the tenancy addi'fldinn 

c. Toe PHA doc., not assume any responsibility li>r htjn,y to, or 
any liability to, any pmoo injurod. as a result of the owner's 
action or ranore to ad in <ODDCCtian with managemelll of the 
cootract untt or the premlse.'l or with l,,\plementatfnn of the HAP 
contra<t, oras an:sult ofany other at:tion ormilme to act by the 
owner. 

d. The owner is not the agent of the PHA, and the HAP CODll8<I 
does oot cn:atc or affi:ct any relatlomhip betweco the ~ and· 
any lender ro the owner or any suppllcs. eroploy<cs. comracrors 
or subconlractors used by the owne,- in conucotion wi1h 
DlllDllpcnt of the contract unit or the prcmfacs or with 
implemeotalioo of the HAP contract. 

fom, ROo&e41 (812009) 
ref Handbook 7420.8 
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13. Conllict oflntErest 
a. 11Covered individual• llleaJl1 a person Or entity who is a 

member of any of the following classes: 

(1) Any pr,:sent or lmmer member or officer of the PHA 
. (exa:pt a PHA commissioner who is a participaot in 
the program); 

(2) Any emplO)'OC of the PHA, or aoy coottador, 
sub-oontracmr or agent of the PHA. who formulates 
policy or who influences decisions with respect to the 

_program; .. 

(J) Any pobllc official, member of a governing body, or 
Sime or local leglslemr, wbo ex..c!ses functicus nr 
responsibilities with respect to tho program; or 

(4} Any member oflbe Congress of the United Stal<$. 

b. A covered individual may not have any direct or Indirect 
inten:st in the HAP contract or in any benefits or ~ts 
under the contmot (including the interest of ao immediate 
Jamily member of sucl, covered individual) while sucl, 
person is • covered lodividual or during one year lhereaftet. 

c.. '1mmediale lim,1y member" moans the spouse, parent 
(iocwdlog a stq,parent). child ('mcluding a stq,child). 
grandparent, gmndcbild, sister or brolber (inclndlog a 
stepsister or stepbrother) of any covered individual. 

d. The OWDer cenifies and is n:sponsiblo for assuring that no 
person or entily has or will have a prohibited intmst, at 
cxecut!on of the HAP comraa. or at any time during the 
HAP contract tcm. 

e. If a pmlu'lriu,d interest ocours. the owner shall promptly 
and fully disclose such iotm:st to the PHA aod HUD. 

! The conflict ofirrterest probfblti<m nuder this section may 
be waived by the HUD field office for good 08ll50. 

g. No member of or deleg,,te to the Congress oflhe Unl!ed 
States or ..sldent commissioner shall be admitted to any 
share or part of tho HAP conlmct or to any benefits which 

may - ftmn it. 

14. Assignment of tbe HAP Contract 
a. The owner may not asslgo the HAP contract to a new 

owner withouJ the prior written consent of the PHA. 
b. If the owner ,cquests PHA consent to assign the HAP 

comraet. to a new owm:r, the owner shall supply any 
infunnation as :required by tho l'HA.pertinent to !he 
proposed assigmnont. 

c. The HAP eontmct may not bo assigned to • new owner that 
ls debem:d, suspended or subject to a limited denial of 
pmticlpat!on under HUD regulatioos (see 24 Code of 
Federal Regulatioos Part 24). 

d. The HAP COl1lJacl may not be assigned to a now owner If 
JruD has prohibited such assignment bec:ause; 

(I) The Federal govenuncut bas instituted an 
admlnistratlve or Judlc!al action against Ibo owner or 
proposed new owner for violation of the Fmr Housing 
Act or other Fedaal equal opportunity reqwmnents. 
and such actiou ls pending; or 

(2) A court or admluistratlve agen,:y bas dolennlned that 
Ibo owner or proposed new owner violated Ibo Fair 
Housing Acl or other Federal equal opportunity 
rcquiremenls. 

Page 7 of 12 

e. The HAP contmc:t may not be assigned to a new owner if the 
new owner (including a principal or.Gib.. intetesed party')'is the 
parent, child. grandpanm~ gmndcllild, sister or brotber of my 
mrmbcrofthc family, unlesstboPHAbasJetennioed (blldhas 
nol!fied the 1mnlly of such deu=ination) that approving the 
assignment, notwilbstanding such niladonsbip would piovide 
Ie&SOrulble accommodation for a family member who is·• per.;on 
with disabilities, 

£ The PHA may deny approval to assign tho HAP conlraet if the 
owner or proposed..,., owner (includmg a·principilJ or otller 
intcn:stcd party): 

(I) Has violated obligati,ms under a housing assistance 
pa)'lllCDtS contract nuder Soctlon 8; · 

(2) Has committed li:and, bn'beiy or any other corrupt or 
criminal act in connectioo .with any Federal housing 
program; 

(3) Has eogaged in any drug-related criminal ac1ivity or aay 
violent criminal actmty. · 

(4) Has abislmy or practice ofI103H:O?DJ>liancewithtbeHQS 
for units leased under the Soctloo 8 tellaDt-based prol!)iams, 
or noo-oompliance with applicable housing standards fDr 
units leased with project-bmci Section P. · assistancr;' or fur 
unlis leased onder 1111)' otber Foderal housing program; 

(5) Has a histmy or practice of mlling to teni>lnE111otemmcy of 
!enBD!s assisted under any Federally assisted bousing 
program fur activity engaged In by the tenant, any member 
of the household, a guest or another person under tho 
control of any member oflhe holl5dlokl that: 

(a) Thn:olens the right to pc:acc:&I eajoyment of the promises· 
by otber residents; 

(b) Threatens the heollh or safety of other iesiilenu, of 
employee,, of the PHA, or of owner anployees or.alba 
permns engaged in management of tho housing; 

(c) Thteatcns the hcolth or safetY ot or the right to ptaa:ful 
enjoymoot of their residents by, persons residing in !he 
immediate vicinity of Ibo premises; or 

(d) Is drug-mlated criminal activity or violent crlminal.actiwy; 

(6) Has a history or practice ofn:ntingunits lhlltmil to meet' 
Stale or local housing codes; or 

(7) Has not paid State or local real estate mxes, fines or 

g.. The new owner must agn:e to be bound by and comply with the 
HAP contract. The agreement mmt be in writing, and in a fonn 
aa:eptable to the PHA. The new owner must give the PHA a 
copy of the oxocuted ag.eemeut. 

1S. Foreelosure. ID the case of any fur any lon:closure, the immediate 
""""'5SOr In - in tho property por.mant to the fmeclosnn: shall 
assume SIICb imen:st subject to the lease between the prior owner and 
the tenant and to the HAP contn!ct between the prior owner and the 
PHA for the occupied unll This provision does afli,ct any SIDie or 
local law that provides longer limo periods or other additiOll81 
protections for tenants. This provision wlD somet llD December 31, 
2012 uale&> eldmded by Js,r. 

foini Huo:52641 (8/2009) 
refHar:idbaok 7420.B 
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16. Written Notices.Any notico bytha PHAorlhe owner in 
connocti011 witlitbi:i cootract m1191 be in writing. 

17. Entire Agreement: Interpretation 

a. . The HAP contract conmins the entire agreement between 
1he ownor and the PHA. 

b. The HAP C001?act shall be lmaprded and implemented in 
accordance with all statutory requlremems, and with all 
HUD requirements, mcludlng the HUD program 
regulat!ODS Bl 24 Code ofFederal Regulations Part 982. 

Previous editions are obsolete Pages of 12 
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Housing Assistance Paymem ... .:ontract 
(HAP Contract} 
Section 8 Tenant-Based Assistance 
Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Part C of HAP Contract: Tenancy Addendum 
I. Section 8 Voucher Program 

a. The owner Is lcasmg the contract unit to the ""1mlt for 
oc:cupancy by the lznant!s mm,ly with assistance for a 
ICDaru:y under the Section 8 housing eboico voudier 
pmgn,m(voudie,'program) of the Unll<d States 
l)q,artmont ofHousillg and Urban Development (HUD). 

b. The owner bas cnten:d Into a Housing Assistmce Payments 
Contract (HAP oontni<t) with the PHA under the votlCller 
program. Undor tho HAl' conttad:, the PHA will lilllC 
baosing assistance payments to the owner to assist the 
temmt in leaslng the 1Dlit llom the owner. 

2. Lease 
a. Tho owner bas given the PHA a oopy of the lease, 

including any n:visiomi agreed by the owner and the 1enan1. 
The owner certifies that the terms oftbc lease are In 
accordanco with all provisions of the HAP contract and that 
the lease includes the tenancy addendum. 

b. The tenant shall have the right to eofura: tho teuancy 
addendum against the owner. If there Is any conflict 
between the tenancy addcod!IID and any other provisions of 
tho lease, the langnage of the tenancy addendum shall 
CODtrol 

3. Use of Contract Unit 
a. During 1be lease lmn, the liimily will n:side in the coollacl 

onitwlth assistance lDlder the voucbet progn,m. 
b. The composition of the household lll1ISI be approved by the 

PHA. The family must promptly infunu the PHA of the 
birth. adoption or court-awarded custody of a child. Oilier 
pasons may not be added to the household without prior 
wdlten opproval of the owner and the PHA. 

c. The contratt onitmay only be wed furresideace by the 
PHA•approved bousdiold membels. The onitmust be the 
lillnily's only residence. Membels of the h0115Cb<lld may 
engage in logul pmfu-making lll:l!vities incidental to 
primmy use of the onit fur residence by members of the 
family, 

d The 11:rumt may not sublease or let the unit. 
e. The tonant may not assign tho lease ..-!r.mSfor the unit. 

4. Rent to Owner 
a. The initial n:nt to owner may not e:<ceod the amc>llDt 

approved by the PHA in accordance with HUD 
rcquin,menls. 

b. Changes in the rent to owner shall i,,, d&rJJJined "Y the 
provisions of the lease. However, the owm:r may not raise 
the rent during the Initial term of the Ioase. 

c. During the 1erm of the loase (including the initial tcm, of 
the loasc and any ext=ion t<:rm). 1he rent to owner may ot 
no time exceed: 

Pn,11iou6 edit/ans an, obsclete Page9cf 12 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and UrtJaa Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housillg 

0MB Approval No. 2577--016!1 
(exp. 09/30/2012) 

(I) Tho reasonable rent fur the unit as most recently 
detl:nninod or-re-determined by the PHA in accordance 
with HUD requin:mems, or 

(2) Rent charged by the DWDCI" fu, eomparablc llDll5Slsu:d mm,; 
in the premises. · 

5. Family Payment to Owner 
.. Tho family Is n:sponmolo for paying the owner any ponion.of 

the rent to ow= that Is not covered by the PlfA housing 
assistance payment. 

b. Each IllODlh, the PHA will make a bonsing asslstouce payment 
to the owner OD behalf ofthelimilly in accordance with the HAP 
contraot. The amount of the manthly housing assistance 
payment will be det<rminecl by the PHA in accordance with 
HUD requin:mcnts for • tenancy under the Section 8 voucher 
program. 

c. The monthly homing assistance payment shall be credited 
against the momhly rent to owm:r mr the eontlDct nnit. 

·d The 1"'llmt is not responsible fur paying the portion of n:ntto 
owner eoven:d by the PHA housing assistance pa:yment under 
the HAP con1ract between the owner and the PHA. A PHA 
fililuro to pay the housing assiSIBnce payment to the owner is not 
a violation af the lease. Tho OWDCr may not termlnale the 
tenancy for nonpayment of the PHA housing assistance 
payment. 

e. The o..,,... may not charge or accept. from the family or from 
any other soura; any l"'!'menl: fur rent af the unit in addition to 
the rent to owner. a.or to owner Includes all housing services. 
maintenance, utilities 3Dd uppliances 10 be provided and paid by 
the owner In accordance with the lease. · 

t The owner n:mst immediately ..-:n any excess rem payment to 
thetcnanL · 

6. other F= and Charges 

a. Rl,nt to owner does not include cost of any"moais or s,ipponive 
services or liiroilme whicb may be provided by the owner. 

b. Tho owner may not require the teaant or linnily member.I to pay 
charges fu< any meals or supportive services or fumian·whlch . 
may be provided by the owner. Nonpaymontofauy·sucll c:baig,,s 
Is not grounds for temimat!an ofllllumcy. · · · 

c. The owner may not charge the tonant e:ma ainaunts 1br Items 
euslommily included in rent to owner In the lo<ality, or provided 
al DO additioeaJ cost to ....ubs!dl20C! !a181lts in the premises. 

7. Maintenance, Uti6ttes, and Other Servi<es 

L Maintenana 
(I) The owner must audnmin the unit and pRmises in 

accordance wilh the HQS. 
(2) Mainu:nance and replacement (inclwllng redecoration) 

must be in aeeordancc wilb the stendmd pmd:ice for tho 
building concaned .. eslabllshed by the·owner, 

form AOD-52641 (8/2009) 
rat Handbook 7420.B 
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b. Utllilies and appliances 
(I) The owner must provide all utilities needed to comply 

with the HQS. 
(2) The owner is not respoDS1'blefor a breaeh of the HQS 

caused by the -· fililure to: 
(a) Pay for any Dll1ll!es lbal are to be paid by the -(b) Prowle III1d main1aJn any appliances that are to be 

proviijedbythetcnaot. 

"- Family damage. The owner is not responsible for a breach 
oftbe HQS becauseofdamagesbeyondnonnal wear and 
tear caused by any member of the household or by a guest 

d. Housing senkos. The = must provide all bousiog 
services as agreed to In the lease. 

8. Tennlnaliun of Tenancy by Owner 
a. Requlremonu. The owner may only rmninale the tenancy in 

iu:cozdance with the lease and HUD requirements. 
b. Grounds. Dming the teim of the lease (the initial teim of the 

lease or any extension teim), the owner may only~ 
1he tenancy becanse of 

(I) Serious or repealed violation of the lease; 
(2) Violation of Federal, Stale, or local low lbal Imposes 

obligmions OD the tenant in COnm:ction with the 
occupancy or use of the noit aod the premises; 

(3) Criminal activity or alcohol almse (as providi:d iu 
paragraph C ); or 

(4) Other good callSO (as provided in paragraph d), 

c. Crlmmal adi,,ilf ., alcohol abuse. 
(I) The owner may terminate the tenancy during the term of 

the lease if ,my mcnber of the housdwld, a guest or 
aoother pe,,;ou under a n,sideot's control commits any 
of the following types of criminal activity: 

(a) Any crimlnal activity lbal threatens the health or 
satl:ty ot; orthe right to pCIIOClbl e,tjoymeot ofthe 
pn:mises by, otbel' n:slclen,. (lncbJding property 
managem,,nt31Bffresiding OD the promises); 

(b) Any c:riminal activity that threatens the health or 
,a:fety nt; or the rlgbt to peacefii1 eujoyment of 
their n:s!cleru:es by, pcr,ons n:siding iu the 
lmmediale viclnlty of the ptt:mises; 

(c) Any vloleot criminal activity on or near the 
premises; or 

( d) Any drug-ralated criminal activity on or near the 
p,emises. 

(2) The owner may 1mniDati, the tenancy during the teim of 
the leas,: if auy mcnber of the household is: 

(a) Fleeing to avoid pnmwion, or custody or 
cnnfimmg;nt after conviction, for a crime, or 
attempt D> eommlt a crime, that is a J'eJOII)' under 
the laws of the pleec from which the iodmdual 
flees, or that. in the case of the Stale of'New 
Jer.;ey, is a high mi~ or 

(b) Vlolating a oondilion ofpn,bation or parole under 
Federal or State law. 

Page 10af12 

Filed o4!Wls Page 39 of 82_ 

(J) The owner may- the l!:Dallcy for crlminal !Kllivity · 
by a household member in acenrdance wilh this sectioo if 
1he CJll/Del' detennioes that the household member bas 
commitmdlbe criminal activity, reganUess of whelher tlic 
·household member has bOO!I arrested or COllvioted fur Slleb 
activity. 

( 4) The owner DIBY terminllle 1he tenancy during.the term of 
the k:aso if any member of the housdlold has engage,nn 
Bbuse of alcobol lbal 1hreatcos the heallh. safety or right to 
peaoolul enjoyu,,,Dt of the premises by other resideuts. 

d. Other good cause fur mmlnatino of tenancy 
(I) During 1ho initial lease term, other good couse for 

1erminetion oftenaocy must be so~ 1hefiunlly did or 
lailedtodo. 

(2) During the initial lease term or during any extension term. 
other good caio;e may IDclude: 

(a) Disturbance ofnolghbors, 
(b) Destruction of property, or 
(c) LMng or housekeeping habits 1het cause damage to 

the unit or premises. 

(J) After the inilia1 lease term, such good cause may include: 
(a) The le!llml's fi!ilnre to ·accept the owner's offer ofa 

new leme or revision; · 
(b) The owner's desire ID use the unit for pmonal or. 

family use or filr a purpose othor than use as a · 
residential rental unit; or . 

(c) A business or economic reason fortermmetion of the 
=ancy (soch as sale of the property, renovetlon of the 
uni!, the ovmei's dl:sln: to rent thc unit for a higher 
rent). 

. (4) The examples of other good C8IISe bi this pan,gmph do not 
preempt miy Stale or lncal Jaws to thc conlmry. 

(S) In thc case of m, ownor who is an imme<lia!i: successor in 
mteres1 pursuant to foreclosme during the term oflh•.i..... 
n:quiring the tenant to YllCllle thc prope,1yprior to sale. 
shall not eonstitllte other good cause, ca:ept that the owner 
may termillelc the lellallcy ofii:cli .. Oil the dale of transfer 
oftbe unit m the owner lfthe owner: (a) will -1h• 
unit as a prlmmy residence; and (b) bas provided the tmant 
a notice ID vaceto et Ieust 90 days before the~ i!ll!I: 
of such JJOtice. This provision shall oot affi:ct. auy Slali: or 
local Jaw that pro'lides fur longer time periods or addition 
proteotious for fl:llauts. This provision wm ·-... . 
.December 31, 2012 uule,s -ed by law. · 

•e. Pr.-om filr Victim• nf All..._ 
(I) An iocideot or mcldcnb nf aawu or 1hreateued .domestic 

vloleoee, dating violence, or stalkiog will not be construed 
as serious or :repea1':d violations of 1he lease or other "good 
cansc" filr tennioalion ofthr "SSiS'aDre, ""'8Dcy, or 
on:nparu:y rlgbts of such a victim. ·. 

(2) Crimioal activity directly ralatiogto abuse, engaged in by a 
member of a tenant's hou..twld or my guest or other 
pcr.i0II 1Jlldcr the-· -~ shall oot be """"' fur 11:nnination of IISSistanee, tenancy, or occupancy rights if 
the tcnanl or an immediate member of the tenant's fimlily is 
the victim or1ht-..ed victim of domestic violeoce, dating · 
violence, or stalldng. 

loiin H00:52641 (8!2008) 
refHandbook.7420.8 
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(3) .Nonu'tJmtmding N>)' restrictiOllS Dn admission, 
occupancy. or terminations of~ or assistance, 
or my Feder.ii, Sla1z or local law to 1be amtrmy, a 
PHA, owner or manager may "bifurcate" a lcasc.. or 
otbawise "'"''""' ahoUsebold member tiom a lease, 
without n,gard !D whether a bousebold member ls a 
,ignatmy to the lease, in orw:r to O¥ict, remove, 
terminate oca,paru:y right,, or terminate assislance ID 
m,y individual wbo ls a tcmmt or lawfiJl O<CUpaDt and 
•wbo eugage, in crimlnal acts ofph)'Skal violeuce 
againstfamily membe<s or others. This action may he 
taken without evicting, removing, tcmunoting assistance 
'to.,. orotherwise penalizing the victim of'the violence 
who Is also a fl:Dlmt or lawful occupant. Such eviction, 
n:moval, termination of occupancy rigb!,;, or 
termination af assistance shall be effected in aa:ordance 
with the procedore, prescribed by Federal, S1llle, and 
loc:al Jaw for the fl:rmination of leases or assi-ce 
under the housing choice voudu:r progn,m. 

(4) Nothing in this section may be construed to llmlt the 
authority of a public housing agency, mmer, or 
manager, wheu lllllified, to honor oourt orders 
addressing right, of acoe,s or oontrol of the property, 
including civil prota:tion orders issued to prota:tthe 
victim and issued to address the dlstributlon or 
possession of property among tho household members 
in cases when: a fiunily lm:aJa DJ>. 

(S) Nothing in Ibis 5"dlon limlls any otherwise sv&ilable 
authority of an owner or mmagerlD evict or the pub lie 
housing agency to tennioate rassistau.ce to a tcnaut for 
any vlollltlun of a lease not premised m, the aot or acts 
ofvloleoa, in qw,stion against the limant m a member 
of the tenant's household, pm11ided that tho owner, 
manager, or public housing llgl:D,:Y does not subject BD 

bulividual who ls or bas been a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, or stalking ID a mora 
demanding standard than other 11,,,.1111s 111 delormining 
whether to evict or1"'minate. 

(6) Nothing in this 5"dlon may be coDStrued ID limit the · 
authority of u owner or mmagerto ovict, or the pub lie 
housfng- ID tenniJlat<: assistance, ID IIII}' 1enatrt if 
the owner:, manager, or public hcrosmg agency tan 
demonstrate an actual and imminent 1hlea1 to oihor 
tenants or thoso anployed at or providing service ID the 
p,cperty if the tenant ls not evicted or terminated Jitnn 
assistDnce. 

(7) Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede 
auy provlslon of m,y Federal, Stale, or local law that 
provjdes greater proteCtion than 1hls section for victims 
of domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking. 

f. Eviction by mart adian. The owner may only evict the 
tenant by a court actioo. 

Previous editions ara obsolete Page 11 of 12 
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g. Owner notice of ground, 

(!) At or bcfoie the begim,iog of a court action to evict the 
temm1, the owner must give the 1EDsnt a notice that 
specifies the grounds 1ilr1mmDatioa oflimaaey. The. 
notice may he included in or oomhined with aey owner 
eviction notia,. 

(2) The owner must givo the PHA a copy of any owner 
evicllon notice at the smne time the oww:r notifies the -(3) Eviction notice means a notice ID V)lC81e, or a eomp!ainl 
or other initial pleadlDg used to begin an eviction action 
1Uldcr Stato or local le.w. 

9. · ·Lease: Relation to HAP Contract 
II the HAP <Olltract termiDab:s for any reason. tt,,,.Jease !elmfuatos 
auromancally. 

10. PHA Termination or Assistance 
The PHA may terminate program assistance ibr the family far any gn,unda 
authorizal in accordance with HUD requlraDA:nt,. l!the PfJA termmates 
progtllDl assistance for the limlily. the I"""' terminates 8Dlnoiatically. 

11, Famlly Move Out 
The temmt mml notify the PHA and 1be """°' bcfon: the fi,,nily moves 
out of1he unit 

12. Seeurity Depasit 

a. Toe owner may collect a security deposit from the lell!mt. 
(However, the PHA may prohibit the owner from c:olleotinga 
security deposit in excess ofpriYlllellDllketp,act!ce, orln excess 
of amo,mts c:b8rged by the ow.nor ID unassisted tenants. Ally 
SDCh PHA-<CQUiredn:.<t!lclion must be specified in the HAP 
eon1la<:t.) . 

b. When the f!mwy moves out of the COlllalot unit, the owner;· 
subjoct to SIBie mid loc:al law. may use the security deposit, 
including any ln1ere.sl on the dopool~ as IOUDhursemcut fur any 
unpaid rent payable by the tonant, m,y damages to the unit or. 
any other amounts that the tenant owes under the lease. 

e. The owner must give the terumt a list of all m:ms chmged 
. against the seeurity deposit, and the amoDDt of each~ Altr:r· 

deducting the amount, if any, used i<> reimburse the owner, the 
DWDCrmust promptly refund the fllll amount of the unnsed·. 
balance to the leuant 

d. Jfthe security deposit is not sufflclcll to cover amoun!s the· 
tenant owes undo< the lease, the owner may collect the.balance 
from the teruinl. 

13. Prohibition of Discrimination 

In accordBDce with applicable eq1181 opportunity_.., Executivo 
Orders, ,md regulations, the owner must not discrimlDati: against any 
pcr,an because ofracc, cola,, religion, sex. natiDnal origln, age, filmilml 
.-s or disability ID com,ectiou with the lease. · 

ref Handbook 7420.B 
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14. Col!Olct with Other Provfsions or Lease 

a. The temis of11u: n:nancy addendum are prescribed by HUD 
In aa:ordance with Fcdml law and .-.grtlatian, as a 
cand!tioo for Federal assistance to lhe 11:naot !llld teoaofs 
fimu1y ooder tbe Section 8 voucba program. 

b. In caso of eny cooffict between lhe prnvisi01l!l of the 
1"111011:y addendum •• required by HUD, and any other 
provisions of1he lease or IIIIY other agreement bolwceu lhe · 
owner und the tooant, lhe requin:men!s of !he 
HUD-required teoaocy addendum sbal1 control 

· 15. Changes in Lease or Rent 
a. The tenant and the owner may not make any change in lhe 

tenano)' addendum. However, lfthe temmt and tbe owner 
agn:o to BD)' other changes in the lease, such chauges must 
be In writing, and lhe owner must immediately give the 
PHA a copy of socb changes. The lease, Including eny 
changes. must be In accordance w!1h tho~ of 
tho tenancy addeodwn. 

b. In the fullowing cases, --based assistance shall not be 
eontioued ooless the PHA bas approved • new tcnam:y in 
aa:onlance with program rcquiremeni., and has executed a 
new HAP cootract witb lhe owner: 

(I) If there ore my changes in lease requirements 
governing - or owner rcspons,l>ll!ties for otillties 
or appliances; 

(2) lftbere are any changes in lease provisions governing 
1lu: term of the lce:;e; 

(3) Ifthe:tilmlly moves to anew1D1i~ even if the unit !sin 
the same building or complex. 

c. PHA ll!)p11>"'1 oftbe 1allmcy, and execution of a new HAP 
amlnu:f, are not requiml fur agreed chang,:s in the lease 
other lhlm as specified In pan,graph b. 

d. The owner must notify the PHA of any changes In the 
amount oflhe =t to owner et least sixty days befure eny 
such cbango,, go Into olfect, and lhe amowtt of lhe rent to · 
owner fullowlng any such agreed change may not exceed 
lhe reasonable rent fur the unit as l11<>St teccnt!y determined 
or redelcnDiDed by the PHA in accordance with HUD 
reqlllrements. 

Hi. Notices 
Any notice under the lease by the tenant to !be owner or by lhe owner 
to lhe 1enJmt must be in writing. 

Pravfous edltimls ""' absolela Page 12 of 12 

17. Definitiell!I 

Contract uait The housing unit rented by lhe n,n,mt wifh •ssi'lllrnte 
under the program. 

Family. The persons who·may reside in the unit with assistance· 
under the program. 

HAP contraet. The bous!ng assistance payments contraot betmen 
the PHA aad tho owitei', The PHA P")'S housin&; llS'ristaoce J)lll'JIICDls 
to the owuer .m BCCOidancc wir.b rhc HAP amtract.. 

Household. Toe persons wbo may n:side lo 1he amtrilct.unil The · 
household consists of the fimnly and any FHA-approved livc-ln ai~ 
(A U,,,,.in aide is a person who =ides In lhe uoit to provide 
necessary supportive services fur a member of the finnlly who is a · 
pe,,;on wilb disabilities.) 

Housfog quality mndanis (HQS). The HUD minimum quality 
standards fur housing assisted under the Scdion.8 tcnllD14>ased 
programs. 

HUD. The U.S. Dopartme,rt ofHcosing and Urban Development 

HUD reqoirementa HUD requirements fur the Soctian 8 program. HUD 
requiroments are issued by HUD headquarters, as regulations. Federal 
Register notices or other binding program directives. 

Lease. The written agrccmm1t b--. the owner and thetcnantforlhe 
lease of the coDIIUCI nnit to the tenant The lease inclndes the l"1lalley. 
addendmn prescnl>cd by HUD. 

PHA. Public He using "-cy. 

Pretoises. The bmldlng or complex: In which the contraot unit is located, 
Including common areas and grounds. 

Prognm. The Sc:aion 8 housing choice voucher program.. ·, 

Root to aw:o.cr. The total monlhly n:nt payable to the owner fur the 
contract unit The rent to owner is lhe sum of the portion of rent payable 
by tbe tenant plus the PHA housing essi-.:C p~ to the owner. 

Section 8. Section 8ofthe Uoited States Housing Act of 1937 (42 United 
Sta11:s Code I 43 7f). 

Tenant The :tilmlly member (ornu:mbm) who leases lheunit:tiom•the 
awner. 

VOIICher program. The Section 8 housing cboioe voudu:r program. · 
Under this program, IIlJD provides funds to an PHA fur =t subsidy on 
bclutlf of eligible mmilies. Tho t.nancy imda the lease will be assist,,d 
with rem subsidy fur a temncyundertbe voucher program. 

/omi HUD-52641 (8!200Sj 
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:,;, /' .. : . · .•. ·.~•:<.~:".:~, .. -~ 

.i::~~fi>•~~ 
Date: 3/22/2013 

Code 

Name 

Address 

City St. Zip 

Date 

8/2/2010 

8/2/2010 

8/27/2010 

9/20/2010 

9/20/2010 

9/20/2010 

9/20/2010 

9/22/2010 

9/22/2010 

9/22/2010 

10/1/2010 

10/1/2010 

10/1/2010 

10/1/2010 

10/2/2010 

10/4/2010 

11/1/2010 

11/1/2010 

11/1/2010 

11/1/2010 

11/1/2010 

11/1/2010 

11/2/2010 

11/3/2010 

11/3/2010 

11/4/2010 

11/4/2010 

12/1/2010 

12/1/2010 

12/1/2010 

12/1/2010 

12/3/2010 

12/4/2010 

Resident Ledger 

\0030362 

Denlka Terry 

3600 Data Dr #391 

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 

Description 

Tora/ Deposit Amount 

Application Fee 

Additional deposit due to credlt*yz 

Rent for 11 days 

Renter's Insurance for 11 days 

Covered Pa rklng for 11 days 

Washer/ Dryer charge for 11 days *yz 

chk# 202476542840 MO- IA 

chk# 14-169012824 MO- IA 

chk# 14-169012823 MO- IA 

Washer/Dryer Rent,/. (10/2010) 

Renter's Insurance (10/2010) 

Covered Parking Charges (10/2010) 

Monthly Rent Charges (10/2010) 

chk# 202232505497 MO- IA 

Late Charges Oct 2010 Late Fee 

Covered Parking Charges (11/2010) 

Washer/Dryer Rent,/ (11/2010) 

Monthly Rent Charges (11/2.010) 

Renter's Insurance (11/2010) 

chk# 1134354 SHRA CK- IA 

chk# 1134354 SHRA CK- IA 

Property 

Unit 

Status 

Rent 

Phone(O)-

. 

Resident not late In October. waiting for sec 8 ck- IA 

SMUD Service Fee 09/20 - 10/710 

SMUD Electric 09/20 - 10/710 

Late Charges NOV 2010 LATE FEES 

chk# 14-186750397 MO- IA 

Covered Parking Charges (12/2010) 

Renter's Insurance (12/2010) 

Monthly Rent Charges (12/2010) 

Washer/Dryer Rent,/ (12/2010) 

chk# 1140677 SHRA CK- IA 

Late Charges DEC 2010 

Ql. 

391 

Past 

939 

Lease From 9/21/2012 

Lease To 4/20/2013 

Move In 9/20/2010 

Move Out 3/20/2013 

Phone(H)- (916) 307-2374 

Charge Payment Balance Chg/Rec 

250.00 250.00 8086253 

35.00 285.00 8086254 

75.00 360.00 8117093 

315.33 675.33 8176902 

5.71 681.04 8176903 

3.67 684.71 8176904 

14.67 699.38 8176907 

349.05 350.33 4637836 

35.00 315.33 4637837 

100.00 215.33 4637838 

40.00 255.33 8292089 

15.58 270.91 8292235 

10.00 280.91 8292535 

860,00 1,140.91 8292536 

140.58 1,000.33 4677673 

50.00 1,050.33 8304525 

10.00 1,060.33 8383549 

40.00 1,100.33 8383550 

860.00 1,960.33 83§3551. 

15.58 1,975.91 8383552 

860.00 1,115.91 4718998 

860.00 255.91 4719004 

(50.00) 205.91 8413378 
25.00 230.91 8414737 

23.98 254.89 8414738 

50.00 304.89 8415963 

65.58 239.31 4749810 

10.00 249.31 8447801 

15.58 264.89 8448219 

860.00 1,124.89 8449249 

40.00 1,164.89 8449563 

860.00 304.89 4791294 

· 50.00 354.89 8481519 
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12/6/2010 SH RA Ck Late- IA (50,00) 304.89 8483824 
12/6/2010 chk# 14-227566236 MO- IA 65.58 239.31 4798400 

12/18/2010 chk# 1146195 SHRA check/ yz 315.00 (75.69) 4807810 

1/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (01/2011) 10.00 (65.69) 8513176 
1/1/2011 Monthly Rent Cllarges (01/2011) .860,00 794.31 8513320 
1/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (01/2011) 40.00 834.31 8514039 

. 1/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (01/2011) 15.58 849.89 8514333 
1/3/2011 chk# 14-253723630 MO- IA 65.58 784.31 4838810 

1/4/2011 Late Charges Jan 2011 50.00 834.31 8545897 

1/4/201], SHRA CK LATE- IA (50.00) 784.31 8547n9 

1/4/2011 chk# 1147035 SHRA CK - IA .860.00 (75.69) 4843951 

2/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (02/2011) 10.00 (65.69) 8661692 
2/1/2011 washer/Dryer Rental (02/2011) 40.00 (25.69) 8661698 

2/1/2011 Monthly Rent Charges (02/2011) 860.00 834.31 8661699 

2/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (02/2011) 15.58 849.89 8661700 
2/3/2011 chk# 14-235723867 MO- IA 65.58 784.31 4905798 
2/3/2011 chk# 1153526 SHRA CK- IA 860.00 (75.69) 4908164 
3/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (03/2011) 10.00 (65,69) 8717980 

3/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (03/2011) 40.00 (25.69) 8717981 
3/1/2011 Monthly Rent Charges (03/2011) 860.00 834.31 8717982 

3/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (03/2011) 15.58 849.89 §717983 

3/1/2011 chk# 14-235600166 MO- IA 65.58 784.31 4940965 

3/2/2011 chk# 1160131 SHRA CK- IA 860.00 (75.69) 4949025 

4/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (04/2011) 10.00 (65.69) 8784214 
4/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (04/2011) 40.00 (25.69) 8784215 

4/1/2011 Monthly Rent Charges (04/2011) 860.00 834.31 8784216 
4/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (04/2011) 15.58 849.89 8784217 

4/3/2011 chk# 1166778 SHRA Ck- IA 860.00 (10.11) 5002399 

4/4/2011 chk# 14-247384337 MO- IA 65.58 (75.69) 5007308 

5/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (05/2011) 10.00 (65.69) 8854204 

5/1/2011 , Washer/Dryer Rental (05/2011) 40.00 (25.69) 8854205 

5/1/2011 Monthly Rent Charges (05/2011) 860.00 834.31 8854206 

5/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (05/2011) 15.58 849.89 8854207 

5/3/2011 chk# 1173481 SHRA CK- IA 860.00 (10.11) 5052087 

5/3/2011 chk# 68824168259 MO- IA '65.58 (75.69) 5056492 

•6/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (06/2011) 10.00 (65.69) 8927198 

6/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (06/2011) 40.00 (25.69) 8927199 

6/1/2011 Monthly Rent Charges (06/2011) 860,00 834.31 8227200 
6/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (06/2011) 15.58 849.89 8927201 
6/2/2011 ' chk# 14-296551086 MO/ yz 65.58 784.31 5101701 

6/3/2011 · chk# 1180089 SHRA CK- IA ' 860.00 (75.69) 5111303 

7/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (07/2011) 10.00 (65.69) 900089:9; 
7/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (07 /2011) 40.00 (25.69) 9000895 
7/1/2011 Monthly Rent Charges (07/2011) 860.00 834.31 9000896 

,7/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (07 /2011) 15.58 849.89 9000897 
7/4/2011 Late Charges July 2011 50.00' 899.89' 9035978 

7/4/2011 resident not late-SD (50.00), " 
849.89 9036987 

7/4/2011 . chk# 1186793 SHRA CK- IA 860.00 (10.11) 5162348 
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Referred E. Jones #51 Ml 03-19-2011- IA (250.00) 
7/31/2011 chk# 1193533 SHRA CK- IA 860.00 
8/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (08/2011) 10.00 
8/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (08/2011) 40.00 
8/1/201+ Monthly Rent Charges (08/2011) 860.0Q 
8/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (08/2011) 15.58 
8/2/2011 Conservlce- IA 64.48 
9/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (09/2011) 19 days 6.33 
9/1/2011 Covered· Parking Charges (09/2011) 11 days 3.67 
9/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (09/2011) 19 days 25.33 
9/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (09/2011) 11 days 14.67 
9/1/2011 · Monthly Rent Charges (09/2011) 860.00 
9/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (09/2011) 19 days 9.87 
9/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (09/2011) 11 days 5.71 
9/2/2011 chk# 1200273 SHRA CK- IA 860.00 
9/30/2011 Conservlce- IA 64.47 
10/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (10/2011) 10.00 
10/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (10/2011) 40.00 
10/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (10/2011) 17.91 
10/1/2011 Housing Assistance Charge (10/2011) 939.00 
10/3/2011 chk# 1207023 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
10/11/2011 chk# 154 CK- IA Reversed by ctrl#5346001 67.91 
10/20/2011 Returned check charge 50.00 

· 10/20/2011 ch k# 154 NSF receipt Ctr!# 5338704 (67.91) 
11/1/2011 covered Parking Charges (11/2011) 10.00 
11/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (11/2011) 40.00 
11/1/:?0ll Renter's Insurance (11/2011) 17.91 . 

11/1/2011 Housing Assistance Charge (11/2011) 939.00 
11/1/2011 chk# 1213799 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
11/3/2011 chk# 203563099190 MO- IA 167.91 
11/8/2011 chk# 14-384003067 Mo- IA 17.95 
12/1/2011 Covered Parking Charges (12/2011) 10.00 
12/1/2011 Washer/Dryer Rental (12/2011) 40.00 
12/1/2011 Renter's Insurance (12/2011) 17.91 
12/1/2011 Housing Assistance Charge (12/2011) 939.00 
12/2/2011 chk# 1220535 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
12/3/2011 chk# 14-384003188 MO- IA 67.91 
l/1/2012 Covered Parking Charges (01/2012) 10.00 
1/1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rental (01/2012) 40.00 
1/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (01/2012) 17.91 
1/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (01/2012) 939.00 
1/3/2012 chk# 1227187 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
1/4/2012 chk# 14-416081488 MO- IA 67.91 
2/1/2012 Covered Parking Charges (02/2012) 10.00 
2/1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rental (02/2012) 40.00 
2/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (02/2012) 17.91 
2/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (02/2012) 939.00 
2/1/2012 chk# 14-442266070 MO- IA 65.98 

Page3 of6 
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(260.11) 9049013 

(1,120.11) 5189028 

(1,110.11) 9077122 

(1,070.11) 9077123 

(210.11) . 9077124 

(194.53) 9077125 

(130.05) 9110793 

(123.72) ·9155996 

~120.05) 915592] 

(94.72) 9155998 

(80.05) 9155~99 

779.95 9156000 

789.82 9156001 

795.53 91560Q2 

(64.47) 5264936 

0.00 9220684 

10.00 9231431 

50.00 9231432 

67.91 9231433 

1,006.91 9231434 

67.91 5326803 

0.00 5338704 

SO.DO 9287174 

117.91 5346001 

127.91 9307889 

167.91 9307890 

185.82 9307891 

1,124.82 9307892 

185.82 5372087 

17.91 5381598 

(0.04) 5392087 

9.96 9379982 

49.96 9379983 

67.87 9379984 

1,006.87 9379985 

67.87 5427993 

(0.04) 5431495 

9.96 9451113 

49.96 9451114 

67.87 9451115 

1,006.87 9451116 

67.87 5484751 

(0.04) 5488021 

9.96 9525843 

49.96 9525844 

67.87 9525845 

1,006.87 9525846 

940.89 5524087 
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chk# 1233969 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
2/15/2012 chk# 14-442266217 MO- IA 1.89 
3/1/2012 Covered Parking Charges (03/2012) 10.00 
3/1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rental (03/2012) 40.00 
3/1/2012 Rerters Insurance (03/2012) 17.91 
3/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (03/2012) 939.00 
3/2/2012 chk# 14-442266328 MO -IA 65.58 
3/3/2012 chk# 1240704 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
3/16i2012 chk# 14-474485659 MO -IA 2.33 
4/1/2012 Covered Parking Charges (04/2012) 10.00 
4/.1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rental (04/2012) 40.00 
4/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (04/2012) 17.91 
4/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (04/2012) 939.00 
4/3/2012 Credit due to SHRA Ck- IA (905.00) 
4/3/2012 Credit due to SHRA CK- IA (21.00) 
4/3/2012 chk# 104826866353 MO- IA 67.91 
4/3/2012 chk# 1247403 SHRA CK- IA 13.00 
5/1/2012 Covered Parking Charges (05/2012) 10.00 
5/1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rental (05/2012) 40.00 
5/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (05/2012) 17.91 
5/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (05/2012) 939.00 
5/1/2012 chk# 14-474485948 MO- IA 67.91 
5/2/2012 chk# 1254051 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
6/1/2012 Covered Parking Charges (06/2012) 10.00 
6/1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rental (06/2012) 40.00 
6/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (06/2012) 17.91! 
6/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (06/2012) 939.00 
6/2/2012 chk# 14-514548555 MO- IA 67.91 
6/3/2012 chk# 1260737 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
7/1/2012 Covered Parking Charges (07/2012) 10.00 
7/1/2012 ' Washer/Dryer Rental (07/2012) 40.00, 
7/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (07 /2012) 17.91 
7/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (07/2012) 939.00 
7/2/201:i. 1 chk# 1267479 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 · 
7/3/2012 chk# PSID16254516 Terminal PSID 16254516 - CHECK21 67.97... 

8/1/2012 . Washer/Dryer Rental (08/2012) 40.00 
8/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (08/2012) 17.91 
8/1/2012 '. Housing Assistance Charge (08/2012) 939.00 
8/3/2012 , chk# 1274490 SHRA CK- IA 939.00 
8/3/2012 chk# PSID17344899 Terminal PSID 17344899 CHECK21 50.97 
8/15/2012 chk# PSID17700193-90 Terminal PSID 17700193 - CHECK21 6.88 
9/1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rertal (09/2012) 40.00 
9/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (09/2012) 17.91 

Page4of6 
Page 46 of 82 · 

1.89 5529942 

o.oo 5549711 

10.00 9596712 

50.00 9596713 

67.91 9596714 

1,006.91 9596715 

941.33 5581673 

2.33 558922! 

0.00 5603286 

. :10,00 9669608 

50.00 9669609 

67.91 9669610 

1,006.91 9669611 

101.91 9703594 

80.91 9703606 

13.00 5638839 

0.00 5642492 

10.00 9742885 

SO.OD 9742886 

67.91 9742887 

1,006.91 9742888 

939.00 5685416 

0.00 5690103 

10.00 9819278 

so.oo 9819279 

67.91 9819280 

1,006.91 9819281 

939.00 5743670 

0.00 5749026 

10.00 2897113 

50.00 9897114 

67.91 2897115 

1,006.91 9897116 

67.91 5802152 

(0.06) 5806574 

39.94 9975128 

57.85 9975129 

996.85 997;i130 

57.85 5860449 

6.88 1 5861897 

0.00 5876788 

40.00 10053703 

57.91 10053704 

--

( 

9/1/2012 Housing Assistance Charge (09/2012) 939.00 996.91 10053705 ..-
,9/3/2012 chk# PSID18155648 Terminal PSID 18155648 - CHECK21 

' 
267.91 IV 729.00 5917492 

9/4/2012 Late Charges Sept 2012 50.00 ' 779.00 10087604 
9/5/2012 " SH RA PMT Late- IA (50.00) ~ 729.00 10094344 

.9/5/2012 ; chk# 3000222 SHRA PMT- IA 
' 

939.00 (210.00) 5926375 
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Washer/Dryer Rertal (10/2012) 

10/1/2012 Monthly Rent C':harges (10/2012) 

10/1/2012 Rerter's Insurance (10/2012) 

Document 1 Filed 04/.5 

40.00 

210.00 

17.91 

Page5 of6 
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(170.00) 10130375 

40.00 10130376 

57.91 10130377 
' 10/1/20i2 Housing Assistance Charge (10/2012) 

10/4/2012 Late Charges Oct 2012 

729.00 

SO.DO 

7_86. 91 10130378 ,, 

519.00 5975463. ,g· 
569.'00 10165598 

10/5/2012 SHRA PMT late- IA 

10/5/2012 chk# 3000432 SHRA PMT - IA 

11/1/2012 Washer/Dryer Rental (11/2012) 

11/1/2012 Monthly Rent Charges (11/2012) 

11/1/2012 Renter's Insurance (11/2012} 

11/1/2012 , Housing Assistance Charge (11/2012) 

1/1/2013 Renter's Insurance (01/2013) 

13/1/2013 

~/1/2013 

:3/1/2013 

'.3/1/2013 

3/3/2013 

}/4/2013 

3/20/2013 

3/20/2013 

~ Renter's Insurance (03/2013) 

l Housing Assistance Charge (03/2013) 

I: ~:1k# 3006596 SHAA Direct Deposit- IA 

~ Late Charges Mar 2013 

'' : Oeposlt credit 

Monthly Rent Charges (03/2013) Credit 11 days 

\. 

(50.00) 519.00 1017i379 

729.00 (210.00) _5981667 

40.00 (170.00)- 10205552 

210.00 40.00 10205553 

17.91 57.91 10205554 

729.00 786.91 10205555 

10277512 

10277513 

40.00 97.91 10348648 

210.001 307.91 10348649 

17.91 325.82 10348650 

729.00· 

300.00 10421423 

510.00 10421424 

528.16 10421425 

1,257.16 10421426 

528.16 6178922 

260.25 6186387 

310.25 10458078 

350.25' 10495956 

210.00 560.25, 10495957 

18.16' 578.41: 10495958 

729.00 1,307.41; 10495959 

729.00 , 578.41' 6236131 

o.oo· 'h 628.41 ·10531262 

303.41 10551413 

(74.52) :, 228.89 10551414 

~3/20/~~~:;;u_:::si::_:n)/.g.:;_AS~s;:'.i_:::st;::a:_:nce::::,.C:;;:h::;a~rg!!:e:l:(0:;3~/,=:20~1:.:3!!)_:0-::.;:ed~l!:.t.!.1:.l~d!;.ays!;_ ___ jj.:(~25~8~.6::;8:L);'~ ---+....l(:;2;::9~.7~9:L)!'~ 1:!;0:!:5!::5/::!1::!4::!:1~5 
l~G/2013 :'. Renter's Insurance (03/2013) Credit 11 days (36.23f 10551416 

!:3/~~~Vasher/Dryer Rer.ta; (03/2013) Credit 11 days I (50.42) 1 10551417 

@z2012013 r carpet Clear.Ing/Damage 655.90, 10551418 

t3/20/2Cl3 i: Par"..s &. Mate.ila:s 1,594.90:: 10551419 

1~2013 f,-Mair,t'Pair,t Labor --·-·-------------1--..:S:.:l;::O:;:.S:.;s~f!----1-....::2.:.:,1:;0~5::..4,-~5;,t;;l;;:0=:5'o5=14=2:::Q=J 
/ 3/20/2013 [: Leg~l Fees " 918.0� :! 31 023.45 10551421 

httr,s://resid,~ntial.netwasatch.com/vovager/reuorts/Resident Ledg~.asp?n[ent=397793&... 3/22/2013 

--J( 

.,, 

Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DB  Document 331  Filed 11/30/23  Page 69 of 217 



Ledger · A A . Page 6 of 6 
· ··'case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DA~EALED* Document 1 Filed 04/fllllf's Page 48 of 82 

Cleaning Charges 240.00 3,263.45 10551422 
3/20/2013 Anal ConService Charge 102.59 3,366.04 10551423 
3/31/2013 : Prag Gen WrlteOff for chg# 10495959 bad debt write off (578.41) 2,787.63 10556533 
3/31/2013 :Prog Gen WrlteOff for chg# 10551418 bad debt write off (410.69) 2,376.94 10552534 
3/31/2013 : Prog Gen WrlteOff for chg# 10551419 bad debt write off • (939.00) 1;437.94 10552535 
3/31/2013 :Prag Gen WriteOff for chg# 10551420 bad debt write off (510.55) 927.39 10552536 
3/31/2013 :Prag Gen WrlteOff for chg# 10551421 bad debt write off (918.00) 9.39 10552537 
3/31/2013 :Prag Gen WrlteOff for chg# 10551422 bad debt write off (9.39) 0.00 10552538 

https://residential.netwasatch.com/voyager/reports/Resident_Ledger.asp?hTent=397793&... 3/22f2013 
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• • . lo I Ii'• O',t 
...... \. 11,, .t/ --·~--~ rr . 

rr 

701-121"-S!reet 
Sooomento. CA 95814 

(916) 4<0-13'l0 
TTY (916) 277-1309 

www.sliro.crg , 

............... 
Housing&~ 

1t&-4v • tlU)iiiial 
~ 

August 18. 2011 

CHESAPEAKE COMMONS 
3600 DATA DR- OFFICE 
RANCHO CORDOVA. CA 95670 

Tenant Number: !0006472 
VendorNwnber: 005076p 

. Unit Number: 00487489 
---· ·---··- -----·----~ . ·------·--·· 

SUBSIDY ADJUSTMENT NOTICE 
The housing assistance subsidy currently paid to the owner as rent for the tenant fumily's address, shown 

below, shall be adjusted as follows, effective OctoberOI, 2011 

CURRENT HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENT: 
TENANT RENT: 

CONTRACT RENT: 

•' ·- ~ . 1 - . .· .. 

. NEW HOUS11'!G ASSISTANCE PAYMENT: 
• ••- I;, 0 0 0 00 •H .... 

. TENANT. RENT: · 
CONTRACT RENT: · . 

The reason for this adjustment is: 
D Fap,ily income changed 
o Family composition changed 
� Annual recertification 

$860.00 
$0.00 
$860.00 

· $939:oo .... 
. . ··so.oo. ;- •. . . 

$939:oo· 

111 Other: Contract rent increase; disregard letter dated S/16/1 I 

If the family has Zero Housing Assistance Payment, they will remain active in the Housing Choice 

Voucher program for I SO days from the above adjustment date provided they do not move from the 

contract unit and there '!!"e no changes in the family composition or income. · 

Sy~~Leon 
(916)440-1390 

FOR THE TENANT FAMILY 
You have.the right to reqlJ!'Sl an_i,µonnal hearing of the agency's determination provided you submit a 

writte!lfequest within fifteen (15).daysirom·the date of this notice:. . 

Cc: DENIKA TERRY 
3600 DATA DR 391 
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

00048 
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EXHIBIT D 



I. 

Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DA&EALED* Document 1 Filed 04.15 Page 52 of 82 

INVESTING IN COMMUNITIES 
August 10, 2012 

•*OPS** 

SUBSIDY ADJUS,MENT NOTICE 
HO.USING CHOICE VOUCHERS (HCV) 

CHESAPEAKE COMMONS 
3600DATADR-OFFJCEC/OWASATCHPROPER1YMGMT 
RANCHO CORDOVA. CA 95670 

Vendorcode:005076p 

RE: DENIKA TERRY Tenant Code: 10006472 

The Housing Assistance Paymeat (HAP) curreatly paid to the owner on behalf of the above-mentioned leDant bas 
been adjusted effective 10/Dl/2012 as follows: 

CURRENTHOUSJNG ASSISTANCE PAYMENT: 
TENANT RENT: 

UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT PAYMENT (URP): 
CONTRACT RENT: 

NEWHOUSJNG ASSISTANCE PAYMENT: 
TENANT RENT: 

UTILlTY-REIMBURSEMENiPAYMENT (URP): 
. . . CONTRACT RENT: 

The reason for this adjustmeat is: Annual Re<:ertification 
Commeats: 

$939.00 
$0.00 
$35,00 
$939.00 

$729.00 
$210.00 
$0.00 
$939.00 

If the Housing Assistance Payment being paid to the landlord is Zero, the fumily wi11 remain active in.the Housing 
Choice V oacber program for 180 days from the above adjustment date provided they do not move from tho contract 
unit and there are no changes in the family composition or income. 

··~:, 
Kassie Slaler 
(916) 440-1390 

FOR TIIE TENANT FAMILY 
You have the right 10 request an Informal Hearing of the Housing Authority's rent detenninatioa provided you 
submit a written request within fifteen (15) days from the date of this notice. · 

cc: DENIKA TERRY 
3600DATADR391 
RANCHO'CORDOVA, CA 95670 

Sacramento HoU51ng & Redevelopment Agency 630 l Slreel SaaamentD,. CA 95814 
Plloac (916)440-J3901m (916)449-128:Sf www.shra..mg 

Diaft 4/12112 U 
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EXHIBIT E 



.From:SHRA Exec _a 1 916 443 8872 07/29/2011111i11.:54 #554 P.015/085 
Case 2:15-cv-00799-KJM-DA'--W'EALED* Document 1 Filed 04/:iw,t> Page 54 of 82 

(Page 1 of 6l.) 

SACRAMENTO HOUSING & REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM 

Lease Supplemental Agl'llf;lment 
This Is a Lease Supplemenlal Agreement that ls a legal contract between the Owner and the Tenant ln reglllds 111 
lease of the property. It should be carelufty read by both parties before &lgning. This Lease SUpplemenlalAgreement, 
iDgether with the HUD-prescnbed tenancy eddenclllm, will be part or Ille HA-eppl'Oved rease l'orm Pf0'/lded .by the 
OWner, If any, and collecllvelywm be the Lease between Owner and Tenanl In the event of a coi1fflc:tbelwEien the 
terms and 00rodilici1S set out in the documents comprising the Lease, lhlS Lease Supplemen1al Agreemer,t Shall 
supenieda any conflicting ptO\'islons 

1. PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT DEANED: 

Mused in this lease, the terms 'Owner' and 'Tananr refer to the l'cllowing: 

a. Tenant ROY HUSKEY m 
b. Owner LOGAN PARK APARTMENTS 

2. PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO RESIDE IN THE UNIT: 

ROY L HUSKEY Ill 

3. UNIT ADDRESS: 4141 PALM AVE 191 
SACRAMENTO, CA llA4Z 

0WNRSPEC2 

MELISSA HUSKEY 

4. INITIAL LEASE TERM: Begins 7'8/20'l 1 1111d ends ~0/2012 

Tenant# 

Vendor# 

!0018323 

CI04359p 

5. INITIAL CONTRACT RENT: $840.00 INITIAL TENANT REITT: $286..DO "-.,__ 
After the lnilial one-year Lease term, the Lease &haU automatically renew as a monlb-ta-month tenancy unless the . 
Lease iS terminated by the OWner, the Tenan~ or the Housing Aulhmfly for cause In accordanee wtlh the provisions of 
the Lease or for convenience Under Cslilomla lew, OWner must p,ovtde Tenant with 90 days prier nolica DI Lease 
tenninatton for c:onvenlence nOIWllbslandlng the month-lo month Lease term. 

The owner shall provide or pey f0r1he utilities and appliances lndlcaled below by "Owner". The tenant shall prcvidlJ or 
pay for the utillties or appltances 1ndicatBd below by "Tenant". Unless o1herWise specified below, the owner shaD pay for 
ell uttlllles and apptlance,. prnlllded by the c,wner. 

Item Paid by 

Air Ccncll1lonlng Tenant 

CCcldngOWElacllfe Tonanl 
l'la!FeeEleclrll; T-
lloatln; • 0IIIElaclllc Tenanl 

0thar 8ecltfc Tmmnt 

RPIIJge •• I OWner 

S-r OWner 

TllllftCOllldlon °"""' w. ... °"""' 
~~~ 'If(,~ 7'fo - $'1¥/ 7~1-1I 

~USKEYIII 
Telephone Number Dale 

.,,1.,, .:44-"li.\jtl .., ,, I I I ry•·et~•-4 T elephane Number Dale OWner Agent ' 

Page 1 of I n,I Ho•- 7420.8 
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EXHIBIT F 
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